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PREPARED PAINTS, & WHITE LEAD,
LINSEED, CASTOR, SPERM AND
LARD OlL,

Cheayer than anywhere else in tovwn.

ALL KINDS OF DRUGS AND SUNDRIES.

None but the best goods, One price for all,

PIONEER MINNEDOTA STORE,
N. W. L JAGER

Offers tor sale at the postoffice store in Minneota, a large and carefully-select-
ed stock of

GENERAL MERCHANDISE,

And is confident that he can make it pay all to trade with him.. Having been
in trade here since the first settlement of the town, he thoroughly understands
{he trade wants of the community, and keeps a stock that all can satisty them-
gelves from. Goand see him.



Tothe Farmers WhoTrads at Minneota,

OLE O. BRENNA, JR.

Is constantly adding to his stock, and now has nearly everything you want in
the line of

Dry Goods, Groceries, Boots and Shoes, Hats and Caps, No-
tions, Clothing and Crockery.

All bought cheap, and for sale at the lowest living profit. Try his store, and
you will continue to trade with him.

lhe Grion Mteamship Line

I have secured the ageney of this best of lines, and can now furnish all with

Tickets ana Drafts

On all the principal parts of Europe at the very lowest rates.

J. H. FROST, Minneota.



KRayser's Book Store !

o o H 7/
B 0 % 1§
5] WD) ZHE RN OF |8

z % q ______ )
8 4 = "
i+ ' E 27 £l

.-4 Ll
EH r <
P z
00! >

Sewing machines, guns, musical instruments, confectionery,
toys, school supplies, amunition, fishing tackle, etc.

KAYSER’S JEWELRY STORE

Alwavs has a large assortment

OF

Watches, Clocks, Silver-ware, Jewelry.

AL Whesnrhe, . , , ,
QE@@B 3 £’%§T@19E‘§. Everything geld is strictly
’// TN A a8 represented, and anything
) . not in stock will he ordered at

list prices.

Repairing of watches, clocks
jewelry, euns, etc. promptly
attended to hy competent
workmen.

Marshall, Minn.
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K BUSTON GAdt o

We carry a large assortment of

Clotking, Cont™ Poruihing Good, Hate & Gas,

—OUR STOCK OF—

DRY GOODS AND NOTIONS

IS UNSURPASSED.

A large line of Boots and Shoes, on
which we save our patrons 25 per cent,

spring stock for 1834 was bought cheap. Always go to the Boston Store
to save money.

Respectiully, A C. CHITTENDEN.



. D ALILLISON, DEINTIST,

NMNarshall, Minn.

Work done with all the latest improvements. Plate work
in any style, filling and extracting without pain by the
use of nitrous oxide gas. Setsof teeth furnished at
bottom prices.

FIRE HAIL WIND

INSURANCLI.

G» M. DURST, AGENT,

MARSHALL, MINN.

All the best and safest companies represented by this agen-
Cy.



HISTORY AND DESCRIPTION

LYON COUNTY, MINNESOTA.

INCLUDING A

FARM AND BUSINESS DIRECTORY,

BY C.T¥. CASE.

MARSHALL:
MESSENGER PRIN I'ING HOUSE,
1824
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PREFACE.

In presenting this small book to the publie, its writer makes no claims to or-
iginality or literary merit, offers np apologies for its short comings and begs
no leniency for its errors. 1t is as near correct as we could make it under the
circumstances. We have had the county canvassedby eight men, each taking
a certain territory, and their work corrected by prominent residents of the
several towns. While it is next to impossible to prevent minor errors in a
work of as much magnitude as that attempted in the map accompanying this,
we believe the work here presented is as near correct as it could be made in
the time given to it. |

The map has a present value which we hope will be appreciated, and the
historical and descriptive matter of the book will grow valuable as time brings-
its changes, and disiance lends interest in the experiences of the county’s pio-
neers.
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HISTORY OF LYON COUNTY.

———— ———

In this unpretentious work we shall not attempt to connect Lyon County
historically with the Garden of Edea or trace back its geographical relations:
farther than the history of the state which it ornaments.

Prior to 1866 the territory which is now embraced by this and several other
counties, was a part of Blue Earth county. At the date above mentioned the
wild western portion of Blue Earth became Brown county. In 1857, Cotton-
wood, Murray, Pipestone, Nobles and Jackson were taken out of Brown, and
in'1865 Redwood county was taken from Brown. The territory thus taken
embraced what is now Yellow Medicine, Lac qui Parle, Lyon, Lincoln and
Redwood In 1869 Lyon county was subtracted from Redwood. 1t then also
embraced Lincoln county which was taken from Lyon in 1873.

Two Indian reservations had been establised within the territery of Red-
wood county, one at Minnesota City in what1s now Yellow Medicine county,
the other six or eight miles east of the present site of Redwood Falls. These
were called respectively the Upper and Lower Sioux Agencies. Through hu-
manitarian ideas an attempt had been made to civilize and make farmers of.
these Sioux. for which purpose houses had been built by government, farms.
opened and a very pretty system inaugurated. It resulted, however, in fail-
ure, and the terrible Sioux massacre of 1862 killed all romantic ideas about
the ¢‘poor Indian’ and put a dead stop to immigration to western Minnesota.
Prior to the massacre, settlement in this latitude had stopped at the eastern
limit of the reservaticn, and only an occasional trader, who saw large profits
in the exchange of poor whiskey and other poor goods for furs, ventured far-
ther west. Three of these trading stations existed betore the massacre within
the section set off as Lyon county. One was at Lake Benton, one in Lynd and
Lyons, and another at Saratoga in the town ot Custer.
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As early as 1837 aud probably a littie before that date, 1 man by the name
of Lynd had a trading station on the Redwood riyer, probably on section 5 in
Lyons, and on section 83 in Lynd as stated in the special histories of thcse
towns. Near that locality there were groves of timber which made an at-
tractive camping place for the Sioux. Inthose times the Indians found very
little trouble in getting food, the streams and lakes abounding with fish, and
there was plenty of game in the woods and on the prairie, besides the wealth
of fur that was yielded by the many lakes in these parts. It is { probable that
these, the first settlers of Lyon county, so far as we know, lived as easy and
perhaps as contented lives as the present settlers.  The red pipestone quarry,
which was holy ground to them, lay only twelve or fifteen miles from Lyon
county as it now stands, and the Indian trails between that and the Minnesota
river ran through this county. This section became an Indian tramping
ground, and the groves of the Redwood and Cottonwood were familiar and
frequented spots.

At the time of the massacre in 1862 there were no settlers and no trading
pokts in the county. It 1sfortunate that such was the case. At lake Shetek
in Murray county there was a settlement of whites who were slaughtered by
the blood-thirsty savages. Mr. Everett, who atterwards became one of the
firm who first opened a store here, was then living at Shetek. He was shot,
and saw his wite and two children killed and scaiped, while a third chid a
daughter was carried off, but afterward rescued. Mr. Everett, after intense
suffering from wounds, escaped and moved tv Waseca.

After the massacre much of the land formerly within the Sioux reservation
was surveyed and thrown open for settlement. In 1865 emigration began to
get across the Minnesota. Redwood Falls and Minnesota City had settlers as
soon as 1865, and in 1867 the settlement of Lynd in Lyon county commenced
as given in the history of that town. Custer and Stanley received settlers in
1868 and that year and the next two or three years there was quite a rapid
immigration that forever extingunished the hunting grounds of the Indian and
rendered unto Ceres the things that were hers.

The county was everyway fitted by nature for a rich agricultural section.
The level prairie with its wealth of nutritious grass, the many streams and
lakes, stocked with fish, the scattered groves, and, above all, the deep rich
soil offered inducements that overcame even the fear of Indian fickelness, and
the home seekers of the east flocked to our prairies to plant here the germs of
future agricultural wealth and advanced civilization. Before this the tide of
immigration had swept across the states south of us,; and though coming here

a little later, it came rapidly, making a populous county in three or four
years out of tenantless piains.



LYON COUNTY. 13

The settlement of Lynd in 1867 was the controlling settlement in the county
for two or three years, and bceame the county seat when the county was or-
ganized in 1872. There was found the only postoffice or store in the county
till one was started in 1871 by Wagner & Co. at Lake Benton. This store was
sold m 1872 to Dr. G. W. Whitney who before this had a store 1n Lynd in the
old log house formerly used as an Indian trading post.

The first settlers at Lake Benton were Wm. Taylor and Chas. Schintle who
went there 1n the spring of 1868. The former was afterward lost and frozen
to death in the blizzard ot Jan. 1878. In the same storm James Robinson and
a Mr. Ebersol of Lincoln county, the latter from Lake Hendricks, weie lost
and perished. The Fox family, from near Marshall were lost at the same
time and three of them died as mentioned in the history of Lake Marshall.
This is said by old settlers to have been the worst blizzard experienced by
whites here. Chas. Taylor, a son of the Win, Taylor who perished i1n this
storm at Lake Benton, wus afterward lost in a blizzard between Marshall and
Lake Benton and was also frozen to death. \With the then almost unbroken
prairie for many miles nearly houseless and roadless, these terrible winter
storms were likely to overtake those who ventured trom home, ;and to be so
overtaken was extremely hazardous. It is a wonder that the mortuary record
of the county for those early years does not show more deaths from freezing
than it does.

The population of Lyon county was rather sparse in 1869 when the county
was set off from Redwood county, though scant settlement had been started
at Marsball, Stanley, Custer, Amiret, Lake Benton, Lynd and the town of
Lyons.

In December of *69 the governor appointed A. V. Muzzy, L, S. Kiel and E.
C. Horton as commissicuners. Owing to absences ot the commissioners which
prevented a meeting no odicial action was taken till August 1870. The first
meeting of the commissioners was held Aug. 12, 1870, at L. Tickner’s, Upper
Lynd. Mr. Muzzy was chosen chairman; R. Holland was made auditor pro
tem by the board, 1). M. Taylor elected auditor, and Chas. Hildreth sheriff.
The board then adjourned till Oct. 8. E. Lamb was then chosen a2uditor and
the beard prepared for the first county election by making the following elec-
tion precinets:

Saratoga pfecmct, towns 107, 110, range 40 and 41. 7. Ferguson and (Geo.
Robinson were appointed justices and Joseph Wagner, Jus. Mitchell and Clar-
ence Avery judges of eclection, which was to be held at the house of Geo LRob-
inson.
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Marshall precinct embraced towns 111 and 112, ranges 40 and 41, with W.
8. Reynolds and C. H. Whitney. justices; C. H. Upton, Joseph Carter and L.
Langdon, judges ot election, to be held at house of C. H. Whitney.

Upper Yellow Medicine precinct was town 113, ranges 40, 41, 42, 43 and 44,
with Frank Nelson and Mr. Morse, justices.

Lynd precinct cmbraced towns 111 and 112, ranges 42 and 43 with 109 and
110 of same ranges attached. A. W. Muzzy, A. R. Cammings and L. Tickner
were judges of election. No justices were appointed.

Lake Benton precinct embraced the rest of the county. Ross and Bently
were made justices and Wm. Taylor, Dan’l Williams and John Birmingham
judges of election to be held at house of Daniel Williams.

At the subsequent election the following officers were elected, 78 votes being
east:

Timothy Eastman, Joseph Wagner and Daniel Williams, commissioners;
Geo. E. Keyes, auditor; A. R. Commings, treasurer; W. H. Langdon, register
of deeds; Jas. Cummings, sherift; A. D. Morgan, clerk of court; A. W. Muz-
zy, judge of probate; W. M. Pierce, county attorney; Jas. Mitchell, Sr., court
commissioner. At a subsequent commissioners meeting in 1871 G. W. Whit-
new was appointed superintendent of schools. The commissioner and assess-
ment districts were made as follows: No. 1, all eastof range 42. No. 2, range
42. No. 3, all west of range 42.

The location of the county seat at this time was at Upper Lynd, at which
place it remained for about two years, when Lower Lynd, having stolen the
thunder of its upper rival, took the county seat also. These were times of
frontier experience to the tew settlers of this county. The luxuries of life then
were few and far between only so far as an active imagination surrounded with
a couleur de rose the commoner things of lite. The elasticity of the human
mind makes pleasures out of privations, and itis not improbable that some of
these eurly settlers enjoyed themselves better then than now. They were not
here for immediate wealth, and society’s demands were mnotvery burdensome.

Logs for houses counld be had with little trouble, or if not, sod was always
plenty. Firewood could be had for the chopping, there then being no strin-
gent laws against cutting on government land.  The railroad grant was not
then made. Provision was not so easy to provide as very littie land was 1
cultivation and wholesale stores were nearly a hundred miles off. Merchan-
dise, what little was used, was brought from New Ulm, St. Peter cr Mankato
by team, a long trip, especially in winter. If lninber was wanted logs had to
be hauled fifty miles;to Redwood Falls, where there was a saw mill. A saw
mill was, however, in operation near Upper Lynd in the winter of 1869, which
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afforded a greatrelief to the settlers of these parts. Going to mill for flour
was as bad as for lumber. The saw mill having failed to be very remunera-
tive was changed to a grist mill atter about three years service in making na-
tive lumber. Fishing and hunting in these carly times were good, and trap-
ping in sume places was a not unimportant source ofincome. The lakesin
the county at that time were the homes of a good many fur animals, including
some of the more valuable furs. Trade began in a small way, first with the
Indians tor ponies, fur, feathers, &c. There were then plenty of Indians roam-
ing around the county in the earlier years of 113 settlement, though they were
always peaceful and anxious to trade what they had for what they hadn’t.
Frequent dances at which everybody knew everybody and formality was un-
necessary and unobserved, an-occasional meeting and Sunday-sebool, visits to
the store where the old settlers met to exchange lies and express admiration of
Ellis s kicking mule, with the annual elections made up about all the social
history of the times.

The first deal in merchandise that could without too dangerous a stretch of
the idea be called a store, was by D. M. Taylor, who kept a stock ot goods at
the P. O. at Upper Lynd, when he was postmaster from June 1868, for sale to
the settlers. The nextstore was opened by G. W. Whitney. Ellis went into
trade in 1871.

The settlers of theso times were mostly men and their families who were at-
tracted here by the government ofier of free land. Usually all that the law al-
lowed was taken as claims, and the holders patiently waited for the tidal
wave of immigration to make their possessions valuable. No very great ef-
forts at tarming were made. The aim aund expected end of most of these fron-
tier settlements was speculation 1n land.  The public lands of Jowa had been
swept over and the original holders made wealthy with no efforts ot their own.
Our early settlers waited for the same experience. Some of them are waiting
yet. Many of them lett comfortable homes farther east and melted away their
small wealth nourishing the hope of coming opulence. Some have partially
realized those hopes, and some have got off their nests without any 1ncubation
and gone farther west to speculate anew, or back east to tell the hardships of
frontier lite. The natural hope of the Lynd settlements was that they could
keep the couaty seal, cventually become a railtoad town, and thus gain the
adyantages attached to suzh conditions. Their locaiion near the center of the
county on the Redwood river and in the best groves of the county seemed to
make this probabls, and it ought to have been so. But the land graast to the
W. & St. P. R. R. of all the odd sections for ten miles each side the read
wherever it should be built, was an inducement to make the road as long as
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possible and to run it where it would take inthe best lands.  Instead of run-
nning anywheve near in a straight line west it therefore ran northwest from
one corner of the county to the other leaving Lynd ten miles or so south of the
road. 'This broke up the metropolitan prospeets of Lynd, at least until some
other railroad shall reach that locality.  The railroad reached the Redwood
river in 1872 and the next year a vote was taken to divide the county, making
the west three tiers of towns nto Lincoln county, snd to move the county
seat from Lynd to Marshall. By this time settlement had scattered all over
the county, and Lynd was no longer able to hold its former political influence.
The fact that Marshall was centrally located and on the railroad, the only
railroad point of any importance in the county at that time, together with the
combination made by Marshali with the west end of the county to make a new
county seat, outweighed the claims ot Lynd, and though the old settlement
made the best fight they could, there was a majority in favor of removal and
Marshall became the capital of the new county of Lyon. T'he vote cast at this
election on the question of removal was 397 for, 99 against.

The election of 1872 left the following county officers:

Auditor, O. C. Gregg; treasurer, A. R. Cummings; register ot deeds, W.
H. Langdon; sherift, Jas. Cummings; clerk of court, A..D. Morgan;’ judge of
probate, Orin Drake; county attorney, W. M. Pierce; court commissioner, Jas.
Mitchell; supt. of sechools, R. Wait; county surveyor, T.W. Caster; corcner,
L. Tickner. J. W. Blake of Marshall was also elected representative.

The politics of the county prior to the county seatremoval in 1873 was about
four to one republican. The removal made a division of parties here, and the
Greeley move comirg on at that time was endorsed by many former republi-
cans. |

In the campaign of 1874 a people’s party was formed which put in nomina-
tion the following ticket:

0. C. Gregg, auditor; J. W. Williams, treasurer; G. M. Durst, register; L.
Turner, attorney; F. Holritz, clerk; J. Mitchell, Sr., judge of probate, T. W.

Jaster, coroner; J. N. Johnson, court commissioner; C. L. Van Fleet, sur-
veyor; T. W. Caster commissioner 3d district and J. S. G. Honner ot Redwood
Talls, senator.

There were 453 votes cast in the county giving the following returns:

For senator, J. W. Blake, 274, J. G. Honner, 169; auditor, O. C. Gregg,
248, S. Truax, 205; treasurer, J. Rouse, 213, J. W. Williams, 229; sheriff, S.
Webster, 252, H. Tripp, 197; register, S. Grosbeck, 193, G. M. Durst, 149, W.
Jlemens, 06; attorney, W. Wakeman, 210, L. Turner, 197; surveyor, C. L.
‘Van Fleet, 360; clerk, O. H. Dahl, 325, F. Holritz, 92; judge of probate, E. B.
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Jewett, 264; J. Mitchell, 180; court cbmmissioner, J. N. Johhson, 115, C. A.
Edwards 149; coroner, D. M. Taylor. 199, T. W. Caster, 127; commissioner 1st
district, Jas. Mitchell Jr., 97, Jones 18; 3d district, H. T. Oakland, 95, T. W.
Caster', 25. . '

This election was carried through with considerable acrimony, the begire-
ning of which was the county seat fight, and enmities were mad: that were
several years appearing i county politics. Since that time the vote ot the
county has been lél'gely republican on general issues and important offices.
with two or three slips of a local character and from -local causes. In 1876
the distriet, though largely republican, elected J. W. Williams of Marshall who
was born and bred a democrat, to the office of represontative.  This was ow-
ing to a party division in Lincoln county, the republican candidate, J. G. Bry-
an, not being popular. County offices have also occasionaliy been filled by.
democrats,

GRASSHOPPER YEARS.

The settlers of Lyon county had become - numerous enouzh by 1884, anil e
riculture had become fashionable enough to have by the assessors’ reporis
4,245 acres of wheat sown in the county. This at forty bushels to the azve, the
advertised yield which this eounty was subject to, would have made the farm-
ers of the couuty well fixed, and have opene da considerable businsss tor grain.‘-
elevators, &ec., if there had not been a new aflliction in the germ that was des--
ined to cloud the the sKy of western Minnesota and check the immigration
movmeent now in full development. The railroad had broaght many of the
comforts oflite, had given the earher setilers neighbors, a good market and
the adjunets of civihization; the first hardships of pioneer life scemed passing.
* away, and hopes of a prosperous future budded and bloomed under the stimu-.
Ius of the growing boom, and Lyon county’s glorious destiny was almost man,»:
itest when from theland of the west wind came the omniverous hopper. 'The.
crop of Lyon county was reduced to an average of not much above ten bushels.
. per acre during the visitation ot ’74. The south part of the county was rather
badly cut, and other portions were visited enough fo frighten the settlers and
raise a barrier to immigration. '

It was thought when the hoppers left in July that no eggs had been left bee-
hind, and hopes were again raisecL that this afMiction was at anend. Full
crops were sown in the spring of 1875, though they were sown in the shadow
ot a great fear which soon became realized. Inmany places eggs hatched oul,.
but t he loss from home-bred gi'asshoppers was small compared with the de-.
struction brought later by the flying millions from the western. hatching:
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grounds. A few weeks before harvest time the air was filled with them, and
the grain fields also. Plans for destroying them were devised, published and
tried, but it was like sweeping back the tides of the ocean, a never failing sup-
ply seeming to be beyond us ready to take the place of those destroyed
#an y settlers gave up the fight and sought the means ot living farther east,

tate appropriations were made for the destitute, andfthe government made
laws enabling settlers under homestead laws to leave their lands without for-
feifure of their rights. Thisact, though undoubtedly in many cases a medium
for fraud, was a great help to many worthy settlers and saved lands that must
otherwise have been lost. Bnt the loss to the county in the stoppage of em-
gration and the permanent desertion of settiers was very great. and it did not
recover from ihe effects of the grasshopper raid for several years. These pests
coming from the hatching grounds on the dried up slopes of the Rocky Moun-
tains came in search of fcod, and stopped when they found it. The country
east of us was very little hurt, and it is improbable, even should a series ot dry
years again occur to cause fights of hoppers, that this county will again be
reached to receive severe damage, as settlement and cultivation has now ex-
tended west of us beyond the Missouri river.

Lyon county, however, lived through this period of insect affliclions better
than most of the counties around it.  Very little state aid was asked for or ta-
ken here. The people were poor, to be sure, and some business men failed
trying to carry grasshopper sufferers. County orders also became ot slow sale
at sixty cents on the dollar. This last, however, was as muth the result of
former bad expenditures as anything else. A debt of about two thousand dol-
lars had been saddled onto the county for mostly useless county books, by the
artistic manipulation of a St. Paul agent and the ignora'née of the county’s
needs on the part of county comimissioners. This with other expenses had
multiplied and increased until it later became necessary 10 bond the county for
some fifteen thousand dollars, and a rigid reform was inaugura.ted with a de-
termination to keep receipts and expenditures equal. Since that reform the
debt of the county has only been increased some five or ten thousand dollars;
and was this spring deemed light enough tc safely cover with a $40,000 bond
voted in aid of the Duluth, North Shore and Southwestern railroad, which
bond, however, has not yet been issued, and is under an injunction suit.

Within the last few years alarge immigration has swelled the population ot
he county ¢o nearly 7,000, much of the railroad land has been sol d , and all the
yovernment land taken and largely proved up, so that the county’s revenues
will hereafter be much larger than heretofore.

This, however, is a historical digression.
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In 1874 a grange of Patrons of Husbandry was organized by the farmers of
the eount.y, but never a.ceomphshed much more than ordinary farmers" clubs.
AXcounty agricultural society was also organized, and the first fair held at
Marshall. It was said to be a very respectable county fair.- The society held
fairs yearly a.fter that with the exception of one or two grasshopper years,
when it had nothmo' to show, and has now leased a permanent fair ground and
put up buildings in Marshall for fair purposes.

An event of ’74, also was a grand reunion of soldiers at Marshall at which
it was ascertained that a large part of the claim holders of the county had
been soldiers. This element now supports a large G. A. R. post here,

AN INDIAN SCARE.

Two or three families of Norwegians living near Medary started this scare in
July ot 1874, and were probably the victims ot a practieal ]oke They came
to Lake Benton with the story that Fort Wadsworth, sixty miles from Lake
Ka.mpeska., bad beed captured by the Indians, who had massacred 200 wlutes,
and were on their way to Lake Benton were they might be expected next day.
That Flandreau was in flames and everybody fleeing before painted savages.
Such a report, seemingly well backed up, created a commotion at Lake Ben-
ton and Marshfield. Several familics fled to Lynd, others held a council of
war at Marshfield, and remained.. John Snyder and Mr. Taylor finally deci-
ded to end the uncertainty by going west, -and bravely rode to Flandreau, 25
miles. There everything was quiet and no Indian war had been heard of. The

return of Snyder and Taylor ended the scare, and, without doubt, brought &
feeling of relief to everybody.

It had been so arranged that most of our county officers were elected in the
even years, and the election of 1876 made the following changes in countv of«
ficers:

Register of deeds, C. L. Van Fleet; sheriff, J. A. Hunter; judge of probate
and county attorney, D. F. Weymouth; court commissioner, £. Lamb; coro-
ner, J. A. Coleman. The other county officers were continued in office. * Gor-
don Watson had been elected courty commissioner the year before. 595 votes
wem cast in 1876.

Two things occurred in 1876 that quickened the public pulse somewhat.
Gold was discovered in the Black Hills and an Indian scare occurred.. The
tormer proved to have some substance to it, but the latter turned out to be
wholly a shadow.. This shadow over in Dakota frightened one or two there
who came to Lake Benton with a rumor that the savages were again on the
war path and atter white scalps. This report frightened a few and just a little
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disturbed a good many. Some left home and sought safety in the towns. En-
quiry however proved 1t all smoke, and the public mind soon settled into the
old channels, and the grasshopper question became more talked about than
Indians. There was no reality out of which to build an Indian scare fer this
section e\cept vivid imaginations,

The political events of 1877 were the election of E. St. Julien Cox to the of-
dice of district judge against Alfred Wallen, and J. W. Williams as represent-
ative against J. G. Bryan. The defeated candidates were republicans in this
case. Williams was a resident of Marshall.

The election of 1878 made the following changes in county offices:

Treasurer, G. A. Jacobson; register, W. M. Coleman; attorney, A. C.
Forbes; surveyor, H. L. Coats; clerk of court C. E. Patterson; county com-
aissioner, G. W. Link.

In 1879 there were 22,400 acres of wheat sown in the county, but the crop
‘was injured by blight as it was everywhere in the state. Lyon county this
year, however, took the first premium at -the state fair for an exhibition of
grains. There were also 2,500 head of cattle shipped from the county, show-
ang that stock raising had not been forgotten.

Bishop Ireland this year bought nearly ten thousand acres, mostly in West-
erheim and Grandview for a Catholic colony, broke 2,200 acres and established
«uite a colony from the old country.

The assessed valuation of the county was now something over a million and
2 half. ‘There were 50 school districts, most of which had summer and winter
schools. The county had four flouring mills, one in Marshall a steam mall.
Everything was in prosperous shape and the county favorably known abroad.
“There were 420 car loads of immigrants’ movables rcceived at the stations in
the county during the year. i

The election of 1880 elected A N. Daniels, register of deeds; S. V. Groes-
"beck, coroner; V. M. Swmith, surveyor. The commissioner districts had been
Teorganized, making five, and Jonathan Owen, M. C. Humphry, Fred Holritz,
Jas, Mitchell and E. L. ttarr were elected?

The census of the county taken this year by the U. S. ga.’ve Lyon county- a
population of 6,242, |

The wheat crop of this year was a very good one, 85 and 40 bushels to the
Aacre bemo' claimed in several cascs. ,

In 1882 a spirit of political unrest had taken possesion of the public mind,
and the usual convention proceedings failed to satisfy It had become by
precedent and practice a sort of underst_andihg that the Scandinavians were to
<laim the office of county reasurer and N. W. L. Jager was nominated at the
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county convention. Treasurer Jacobson, who had been in office before had,
however, been found some $400 short in his accounts and to have run the of-
fice very loosely. A prejudice against Scandinavians as treasurers, caused the
ca_',lling of an independent convention which nominated R. M. Addison for
_ treasurer. Some other changes were also made in the ticket, but the conven
tion fell into a quarrel, and the democrats issued another ticket, with J. W.
Williams for treasurer, M. E. Mathews for attorney, and D. F. Weymouth for
judge of probute. There were thus three tickets in the field. Before the first
convention a desire to put in new officers all around had shown itself and had
been worked upon by interested parties, so that the regular republican nomi-
nees were largely new men. The district fight that fall over the office of sen-
ator between J. W, Blake and V. M. Smith had been a severe one, and the
winning of the nomination by Blake had some political peculiarities about it
that left a divided party in the county and much enmity. The election, there- -
fore was a spirited and somewhat ugly one, resulting in the election of the fol-
lowing ticket:

‘Auditor, Jas. Lawrence; treasurer, R. M. Addison; sheriff, J. F. Remore;
register, R. D. Bumiord; judge of probate, J. F. Brown; uttorney. A. C.
Forbes; clerk of court, C. E. Patterson; cuurt commissioner, D. Wilcox; coun-
ty commissioners, Hugh Neill and Geo. Carlaw.

L. A. Gregg was elected school superintendent in 1883.

A VIEW OF THE COUNTY.

Lyon county has twenty townships as will be seen in the map which accom-
panies this book., With the exzeption of a small portion along the west line
which is cut by the couteau range, there 1s very little waste land in the county
and its agricultural resources are _fully up to the best section of the west.
With fertile farm lacds, and an abundance of meadows of wild grass, which
for nutritiousness holds its own with tame grass, makes the county one of the
favored spots of southwestern Minnesota for farming, stock growing or dairy-
ing, and its prairies are fast becoming thritty farms and prosperous homes.
Several streams, which in the west come properly under the head of rivers,
flow through the county. None of them are navigable however in low w ater
Lakes dot the topography here and there, and the combination of rolling prai-
rie, running streams and beautiful lakes makes a landscape that fascinates all
beholders who see it in its summer glory. '

Immigration has been rapidly flowing in till the government land is all ta-

ken up. There is yet considerable railroad land for sale, and some of the
lands of private individuals, taken on speculation and otherwise, can te bought
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from 34 an acre upwards according to nearness to towns. Most of the streams:
have’ groves of timber on themj; the Redwood, south of Marshall, and the Got—
tonwood, in Custer and Annret having considerable tlmber

Two railroads now run ‘across the county, shown on the map, and one flom
northeast to southwest will undoubtedly be built this year. This is one from:
Duluth to Yankton, and will offer a competing market that will greatly help
producers ‘here. One other from Iowa, a branch of the Rock Island sys-
tem, is projected thr ough the county to join the lines of t he company north of

us. This will give more direct access to the lowa coal fields a.nd chea.pen that
product.

WINTER STORMS.

- The greatest bugbear, probably, connected with western Minnesota and Da-
kota in the minds of people who know of it only by report, is the northwest-
ern blizzard, We do not here mtend {o rise as a detender of the blizzard. It
needs no defender, being usually able to take care ot itself. The winter storms:
of the northwest are severe, and.the blizzard is a variety of storm unknown to
eastern sections. Several deaths haye occurred in Lyon county from these
storms. In the wmter of 1872 and 78 ome occurred which is said to
have been worse than anyuhmg of the kind since experienced. 1In Lyon coun-
ty there were six persons that perished mn that storm. _Three of the Fox fami--
ly, Wm. Taylor, James Robinson and a man by the name of Ebersold. Settle-
ment at that time was sparse, but there was considerable suffering and loss of
stock in consequence ot 1t, The winter of 1875 was also one of frequent and
terrible storms. Mr. Pierce of Lynd, father ot the Pierces of Camden, was.
lost while trapping, and afterwards found dead. Henry Gibbs of Fairview was.
also frozen to death in one of the blizzards ot this winter, and about this time
Chas. Taylor, son of the Wm. Taylor frozen to death in 1873, also perished in
a blizzard. In Oct. 1880 a seyere snow storm visited this section that did
great damage on account of its coming unexpectedly and so far ahead of sea-
son. Considerable stock perished in this storm, but we believe there was no-
loss of human life. The following winter was one of heavy snows and fre-
quent blizzards. No trans ran from Jan. to April and the fuel supply failed
in mid-winter. The roads were almost impassable and the little wood that.
could be obtained from the Lynd woods was high-priced and green. The win-
ter was oue that the settlers will long remember. Hay and oats were burned
where they could be obtained, but there were some families who could not ‘ob-
tain even hay. Other things also ran short and the settlers on the fron tier in
the winter of 1830 know what extreme privation is. A young man by the
name of Kiel and an lcelander were trozen to death near Minneota this or the
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suksequent winter. In 1883-two deaths occurred near Marshall in a February
storm, Mr. L. C. Hildreth, an old settler of Lyons, attempted to go home
from a neighbors one night in a snow storm, but the storm turning to a bliz-
zard he lost his way and wandered all night to near {Balatun, where he was
found dead after the storm. During the same storm a Miss Eliza: Cain at-
tempted to go home from a neighbor’s near Amiret and lost her way. She
wandered with the storm during the night till frozen and was found dead on
the prairie at the close of the storm. .

This is a record that we dislike to pubhﬂh but it 1s a part of our county’s
history. More extensive settlement of the county, the planting of groves and
a better knowledge of the characteristics of these storms will, we hope, pre-
vent future accidents of this kind. Aside from a very few of ‘these storms,
sometimes none during the winter, our winters are accompanied with less suf-
fering than those of countries east or south of us. Being always dry and
healthy, the winters of this section as a whole are not-a serious brawback, or
much to be dreaded by those who are prepared for winter weather.

RAILROAD ‘STATIONS.

MINNEOTA.

~ The most westlerly stanon on the north branch of the C. & N. W. lines is
Minneota.

The town was laid out by the railroad company in 1876 on section 25 of
Eidsvold. A store had been opened near here by H. D, Frink who also kept
the P. O. from 1872 to 1875, when it was transferred to N. W. L. Jager, the
present occupant. Mr. Jager opened a store in 1874 snd moved 1t to the pres-
ent site ot Minneota in 1875. This was the first store on the site. The same
vear T. D. Seals opened a store there.  After the permanent establishment of
the station by the railroad comp any, business gradually drifted in till the vil-
lage is now ohe ot four or five hundred population, with all the usual branches
-of business represented. Minneota is an. incorporated village, has a good
school building, a Catholic church, two grain elevators wilh ten horse engines,
depot buildings, &c., and is on the high road to prosperity.

The business record of the town 1s as follows: |

N. W. L. Jager, general merchandise.

Hanson Bros., hardware ard livery, furniture and machinery,

T. Hanson, dry gcodls and groceries, &c.

T. D. Seals, “ ‘

Ole O. Brenna, ¢ ' ¢
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Theo. Rye, hardware and tinware.

Wimer Bros., drugs.

C. Kenyo n, farm machirery.

Frost & Peterson, groceries

Davidson Bros., Bank of Minneota.

J. C. Peterson, agent for Laird & Norton’s lumber yard.

L. C. Porter, elevator, Wm. Davidson agent.

Van Dusen & Co., elevator, G..N. Lee, agent.

P. Ferguson. hotel.

Tony Winters, harness maker.

Geo. Mantel, boots and shoes.

Sam Leeland and Arney Rye, blacksmiths.

Swend Peterson and W. Hester, saloons.

Dennis Cahil, grocery.

Dr. Seals, meat market.

G. A. Dalman, feed mill.

Doctors Wimer, Rzoniger and Sanderson.

J. R. Smith. depot agent and telegraph operator.

The Porter elevato r bought in 1883, wheat, 125,000 bushels; barley, 1,000;
oats, 15,000. Coal sold, $2,000; flour, $3,000; salt, $600.

Van Dusen's elevator for 1833, bought, wheat, 150,000 bushels; barley »
2,500; oats, 4,000; hides, $1,200. It sold 40 tons of hard coal, 180 tons soft
25 0 cords of wood, 70,000 pounds of flour.

The Bank of Minneota. of which Wm. Davidson is president, A. D. Dawd-
son vice president, A. D. Davidson cashier, reports paper ‘on hand for collec-
tion, $150,000; exchange business, $200,000; capital stock, £25,000.

There were 4,911,503 pounds of freight received at the station in 1883, and
9,609,815 pounds forwarded.

The Minneota wind feed mill ground in 1883, 15,000 bushels of feed.

Laird & Norton’s lumber yard reports sold in 1883, 1,000,000 feet of lumber,
150, 000 lath, 500,000 shing}es, 20,000 brick, 450 barrels of lime, 100 bushels of
h air.

This shows somewhat the business of tihe town. Its future prospeets as the
seat of the Catholic colony are very promising.

GHENT.

In May 1878 the vilia«re of Grandview was laid out by Mr. Jacoby. In April

of that year J. P. Ray erected a store building and occupied it as grocery.
The busines was not however a success, and the store was closed out 1 Oct.
of that year. The postoffice was established in June 1877, with J. M. Vaughn
P. M. Muv. Vaughn put up the first grain warehouse, and bought wheat for
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Van Dusen & Co. - The postoffice was keptin Ray’s store till the collapse
when it was moved to Vaughn's house, two miles northwest, where it was kept.
till 1880, when it was removed to the town site of Grandview. In 1880 J. Fa.
gen, one of the Irish Catholic colonists, built the second store, but soon failed.
R. F. Laythe, built the third store in 1882, occupying it with goods for Olot-
Pehrson of Marshall. He wasalso made P. M. In 1882 the R. R. Co. built a
commodions depot. Mr. King was then agent. Van Dusen & Co. built an el-
evator the same year. ‘John Fodness was then agent till the fall of 1882, when
Joseph Letourneau took his place. About this time the name of the postoffice
and station was changed to Ghent by the Belgian colonists. Mr. Loranger
was R. R. agent then for a time. ln March 1883 Laythe sold fout to Capis-
trand & Soucheray, Catholic colonists.  Mr. Soucheray - bought his pariner’s
interest in'June following. In Dec. 1883 E. Paradis bought the Fagen store
and opened a stock of goods. Mr. Story ran a hotel there for a time in 1883,
and a blacksmith shop was run. _

The settlement of Ghent is largely by Belgian and French colonists. With
the settling up of the vacant lands around Ghent, it will become of much more
importazce,

| AMIRET.

This station, about ten miles east of Marshall, was located on its present
site by the railroad company in 1874. Two years prior to this they had had
a switch about a mile sontheast of this. and had called the station Coburg after
Wm. Coburn who started a store on section 32 in 1872, He was also post-
master. The station has not made \"ery rapid strides toward a village yet, and
at present has only one store, kept by Mr. Kelly.  Several stores have at dif-
ferent times been started there, but the setilement prefer to do most of their
trading at Marshall and Tracy. Van Dusen & Co. have an eievator there, the
railroad corﬁpﬁny has a fair depot, and the town has a good frame school
house and a few-buildings.

BALATON.

In Oct. 1879 the village of Balaton was laid out on the northwest cerner of
section 23 on the south side of Lake Yankton, and onthe line ot the Dakota
Central 1'ai1\\fa.3'. The village hos three general stores, one hardware store,
one blacksmish and wagon shop, two hotels, one elevator, one warehouse, lam-
ber yard &c. David Bell was thefirst to go into business having built & store

soon after the village plat was made. The busiiiess men ot Balaton ave:
N. A. Sanders dealer in hardware and machinery.
A. Parker, ¢« general merchandise.
J. A. Moore, * L “  and drugs.
J. B. Gibbons, - - “  and postmaster.
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H. H. Stevenhofter, wheat buyer for Winona Mill Co.

N. Zechus, wheat buyer for Seafield & Co.

L. Campbell, justice of the peaee.

W. H. Davy, constable.

A. N. Daniels, notary public and insurance agent.

W. Ham, proprietor ot Balaton Hotel, now leased by C. S. Riley.

E. D. Bartlett, proprietor of Lake Avenue Hotel.

‘The village is very pleasantly situated on the lake shoro, 1s in the midst of a
-wery rich farming section, and with the filling up of the country by immigra-
tion will undoubtedly become a thrifty and populous village.

TRACY.

The railroad station was moved in 1874 from Summit. across the county line
in Redwood Co., to its present site on section 23, and named Tracy. The town
was laid out by the railroad company. " H. N. J oy moved a frame buildihg.
drom the farm of E. L. Starr in the fall of that year, and opened the first store.
s location was on the corner of Front and Third streets. The Commercial
hotel was cognmenced the same year by H. H. Welch, who ran it till 1879,
when it was bought by its present proprietor, M. D. Gibbs. E. O. Brauns and
J. P. Davis started stores in 1875. J. M. Wardelllopened a furniture store and
lIllher yard in 1876. In 1878 J. L. Craig, who had been depot agent tor. two
.yesxs, opened a livery stable. D. H. Evans a hardware store, Iverson & Thurin
a general store, and Dr. C. M. Ferrolocated there. In 1879 Chas, Bohannan
-opened a drug store, J. J. Hartigan & saloon, F. E. Mallory a jewelry store,
Jehn Selck a wagon shop, 1. A. Waldon a meat market, Chas, W. Main a law
-office and D. W. Kutchin started the Tracy Gazette. At this time the Dakota
Central railroad was built west from Tracy to Volga. The next spring the U.
8. census gave the village a population of 322. - About thirty buildings were
put up in 1880 and 1882. The village was incorperated in 1881. A fine brick
wchool building was buili in 1880, costing $6,000. 1t has four departments,
three of which now have schools. In 1883 W. M. Todd, who had been mn the
mercartile business there for a year or two, bought the Gazette, and changed
ifs nawe to the Trumpet. - The R. R. Co. tound the obtaining ot water suficjent
for railroad purposes am impossibility by sinking wells, and have lately built an
aqueduct to Lake Sigel. The improvements of the R. R. Company since re-
meving the division there flom Sleepy Eye are quite extensive, and the village
has assumed a posmon of 1mp01tance as a railroad town. 1t also hasa U. 8,
Iand-office. The present business of the town is shown below:

Geaeral stores—Pattridee Bros,, J. P. Davis, R. E. Hughes, Wa.lren &
QOweas; [verson & Thurin, A. H. Perry.
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Groceries and crockery—Gauerke, Weber & Co.

Clothisg—Jacobi Bros. & Co., John Shea,

Jewelry and drugs—C. L. Boharnan, F. E. Mallory,

Meat inarket—I. A. Walden, J. W. Potter.

Millinery and dressmaking—Stenernagel & Currie, Warren & Inman.
Hardware—D. H. Evans, H. Statford, J. E. Clark, N. Beach.

Hotels—M. D. Gibbs, Neil Finch, B. K. Cowles, Murphy & LcDonald Yoo
gon Bros,, A D. McMasters.

Livery-—Lindsley & Fitch, J. L. Craig, John Germain.
'Laundry—Ching Kee, Mary Otis.
Slioemaking—Jas. Marshall, Henry Heine.
Tailoring—H. Alexander, P. A. La.mberg
Harness— Wa gner & Co.
Wagon maker—John Selck.
Blacksmiths—Paul Ha.ngen, John Giynn.

_ 'Novely store—H. F. Seiter.
Bank ot Tracy—Jessup & Co.
Barbers—Jackson & Seiter, H. A. Bates.
Restaurants—C."J, Gardener, Mary Leavett.
Furniture—J. M. Wardell. |
" Lumber—Wardell, Beach & Co.

Machmery—s D. Peterson, Marlette and Lloyd, D. H. Evens.

Elevators—Va.n Dusen & Co., Whitten & Judd, Winona Mill Co., D H..
Eva.ns

Loal—Van Dusen. S. J. Randall.’

Saloons—J. J. Hartigan, Fred Lelama.n, Martin Hose, C. Anderson.

Beer depots—Aug. Schell, C. & J. Michel, Hartigan & Armstrong.
Wholesale liquors—E. H. Roach & Co.

Physmmns-—C M. Ferro, Mrs, L. Ferro, S. S..Jones, H. M. Workma.n, 0.
E. Case.

Attorneys—C. W. Main, Van Buskirk & Brown, John Lind, also receiver of
U. S. land office. | |

Tracy Trumpet—W. M. Todd.

Shating rink—Welch & Davis.

Postmaster—XE. O. Brauns.

Photographs—W. I. Carver.

Painters—Manuel & Cogswell.
- Express agent—I. E. Segur,
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MARSHALL.

The first settlers on the territory now occupied by the‘villa.ge of Marshall
were C. H. Whitney and C. H. Upton, who came here in 1869. Whitmey took
the se 1 and Upton the ne}. They first built sod shanties, the remains of
which can yet be seen. At that time there wagslittle to indicate its present
conditions. 'The river was here and so was an Indian trail from Lytfd to Red-
wood Falls. Outside of these advantages, the present town site was only good
farming land. Nov. 24, 1870, the first birth occurred, that of Fannie Whitney.
The first death was a daughter of Jas. Armstrong, ot scarlet fever. In 1872
the Winona & St. Peter railroad was located through the township,' taking in
section 4, and immigration rapidly set in toward thiv point. A townsite com-
pany was formed, consisting of J. H. Jenkins, J. H. Stewart, J. W. Blake, W.
G. Ward, railroad civil engineers, and C. H, Whitney, who owned part of the
land.in the proposed site. The willage was laid out in August 1872 in the cen-
tral part of section 4.  Milo Morse and Mrs. U. S. Stone held the sw and nw
quarters by government claims located in 1870. The sw was bought of Morse
and the south half of the né of Mrs. Stone

The first house on this original plat was the sod house of Milo Morse near
"Van Dusen’s coal house. Itis stated in the history of Lake Marshall township
that the first child born was a child of one of the Billings’. The Billings child
was the first 1n the originally platted village, and subsequent to the birth of
‘Faiinie Whitney, the first in the township. The first store building was the
one now occupied by J. Geodwin as a carpenter shop and belonged to Addison,
Everett & Co. It was put up on Main street in the center-of what is now Third
street. '

The fall of 1872 saw the completion ot the railroad to this point, and found
‘the following men here in business: Everett & Co., D. P, Billings, J. A. Cole-
‘man, general stores; W. M. Todd, lumber yard; Daniel!Farquar, blacksmith;
Wakeman & Pierce and E. B. Jewett, attorneys. C. H. Whitney built a ho-
tel, part of the present Merchants’ Exchange , in the fall of 1872, and was over-
whelmed with guests. During the tall of 1872 and the spring of 1873 a hay
stack even had value as & lodging place. The railroad men slept in the lee
side of a‘stack as a rule, and three in a bed was 4 condition of opulence and fa-
-voritism. During one rush for hash at Whitney’s hotel the floor broke down,
filling; the potato bins in his cellar full of hungry guests.  In these early days
1t is said there were also fleas, and many stories of midnight misery are tuld,

most of which we never believed.
During the winter of 1872—73 a school was ta.ught. in Todd’s lumber office.
G. H, Darling began the school, but it was finished by Walter Wakeman.
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The winter was a hard one, the railroad, as usual in the early years of our
‘history, was blockaded most of the winter, and several went east tu escape the
lonesomeness of this kind of exile.  The spring of 1873 brought them all back;
howeyer, and with them a rush of new settlers.

John Ward was R. R. agent for a time. - M. E: Wilcox was telegraph oper-
ator, but soon became agent in place of Ward. Daniel Wilcox opened a black-
smith shop. Wakeman & Groesbeck, a phy.sicmn,' opened a drug store,
Wakeman became postmaster. In August of 1873 J. C. Ervin moved a print-
ing office here from Dell Rapids, Dakota, -and started the Prairie- Schooner,
the name of which was suggested by Gen. Pierce. In its columns at this time
we find the following here in busiress 1n addition to those above mentioned:

C. Woodbury, Marshall House; P. Van. Zant, Travellers’ Rest; J. F. Met-
calf. blacksmith; H. S. Adams, wagon shop; J. P. Watson, hardware store;
Mrs. E. Burrall, milliner; A. O. Underhill, contectionery, &ec.; Langdon &
Laythe, lumber yard; J. W. Williams, hardware; J. Bagley, meat market;
Turner & Loope, lumber, furniture and machinery; E. Fuller photograpbs; J.
W. Blake, agent of townsite company. C. H. Whitney burned a kiln of 85,-
000 brick this season. The kiln was at the northeast end of Third street. The
‘Congregational society put up a bwlding for a church on Main street, the one
now owned by Geo. E. Johnson. The public school was tanghtthere by Miss
D. Wheeler, now Mrs. G. M. Durst. W. M. Todd went into partnership with
Coleman & Co. L. Nichols opened a livery. H. J. Tripp was in the ma chine
business. A Masoniclodge was formed. J. F. Reichert built his brick block
of two store buildings in the fall of this year.

In 1874, Kendall’s mill was built; Blake started a cheese factory, B. A. Grubb
opened a harness shop, Groesheck sold his interest in the drug store to Whit-
ney, who also became P. M. The store and postoffice were burned in Dec.
L. F. Pickard ran a tin shop, A. Bean was a lightming rod agent, M. M. Mar-
shall opened a furniture store and built a grain [warehouse, C. A. Edwards ran
a lumber yard, Fuller & Co. a feed store, D. F. Weymouth a law office, Lock-
ey & Yates became a firm for masons’ work, J. Goodwin & Co. builders, Dr.
Burgoyne arrived, a brass band was organized, Marceyes and Reichert being
its managers, Rev. Galpin, assisted by Rev. E. Goodman conducted the M.
E. church, and Rev. Simmons the Congregational society. Alexander Sanders
was killed by lightning in Augnst on Norton Bilhng’s place. A dramatic so-

ciety was formed and the play of the People’s Lawyer successfully produced.
A literary society was'also organized. ,

‘The spring of 1875, having been preceded by a winter of much snow, opened
with a flood. An1ce gorge was formed below the village, and the lower parts
of the town were under wuter so much that several families had to be helped
out with boats.
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The Prairie Schooner was sold this year to the writer of this book, and the
name changod in September to the Marshall Messenger. The octagon part of
the present schooljhouse was built in the spring, Addison & Tnpp formed e
machine partnership, L P. Farrington opened a general store, Joe Sears a shoe
shop, Dr. Newell a dentist’s office, J. A. Hatchins a blacksmith shop, Whitney
& Webster.an insurance office. Everett sold his interest in the storeto Addi-
gon & Mott. Geo. Nichols built a brick ‘building, now the court room. A dou-
ble brick block was built by me.rshall Coleman & Co. and C. F. Case at the
head of Third street.

In 1876 we find among the new business honses, Keyes & Blake, blacksmiths;
P. F. Wise, farm machinery; O. Pehrson, general merchandise; Burgoyne &
Jewett, drags, which afterwards tell into the hands of C. M, Wilcox; Edwards,
feed mili; B. F. Jellison, shoe shop; I. Burrall, carpenter; M. M. Marshall,
drugs; B. Gibbs and D. Crowley, meat markets; Mrs. Clemens ‘and Mrs. "Un-
&erhlll, milliners; 8. J. Watkins, machinery; H. B. Gary, Edwards and Adgi-

zon & Mott had grain warehouses. W. M. Todd bought out Coleman a.nd op-
érated the store alone.

In 1877 came E. H. Puffer, who sold his goods and dJsa.ppea.red like the
morning dew, so much ahead of his wholesale men.  D. " Bell went into the ho-
tel. W.M. Todd sold out to C. B. Todd, who took W. H. ‘'Lynn into partner-
shlp and afterward failed. M. E. Wilcox bouo'ht out the bankrupt stock of I.
P. l‘arrmgton s and after running it a year or so, also failed. * D. McIntyre
went info partnership with J. Andrews fin furniture, McCormick opened a

meat market, C. A: Haskel a gunsmith shop, Horton & Hamilton a lumber
yard with W. M. Todd agent.

1878 saw Bennett & Hunt in the sale of blooded horses. Hunt afterwards
bought the hotel which Bell had been trying to run. A. C. Chittenden bought
the Todd stock and opened a store. Griswold & Hillyer put in the Wisconsin
store. Thos. Watson built and opened the Marshall House. MecNiven Bros.
stated a livery stable. Drs. Persons, Andrew and Houston, and attorneys
Chittenden, Forbes, Seward and Gove located here (. A. Tracy opened -2
furniture store, was succeeded by Thos. Wookey. Jewellers W. H. Wright, W..
C. Kayser, and J. Lohmiller were in business. Aldrich & Houston bought out
Marshall’s drug store. Owen & Dibble opened the Bank of Marshall. The
Messenger block, six brick stores, was built and occupied by Lyon Co. Bank,
Schutz & Kyle, dry goods, E. L. Healy, groceries, S. Keyser, clothing, C. M.
Wileox, drugs, J. H. Snyder, books, &z. The last was bought by C. F. Case
in a few weeks, and clothing store soon passed to Chambers Bros. E. D. Allison

- also occupied rooms as a deatist. Three briek yards were run by Crooker,
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‘Whitney and Lockey. L. Lavake opened a market, having been dlspla.ced as
R. R. agent. Robt Waldron also opened a store, -

In 1879 we find Laythe & Tripp, macbinery; F. Weikle and Lohmiller, mar-
kets; J. W. Blake lumber yard; F. S. Wetherbee, store; J. F. Remore, machin-
ery; King & Wakeman, drugs; W. L. Watson, machinery; Youmans & Co,
with M: Sullivan, agent; Mathews & Andrews and M. B. Dre(v, attorneéys; E.
J. Harrison, marble-cutter; Laythe & Pehrson, store. VanDusen & Co. built-
an elevater. Todd & Edes started a second paper, the Lyon Co. News.

By the census of 1880 the village had a populaticn of about 1,000." Some
changes have smee occurred  Blake built an extesive wind grist mill, which
was traded 1o Geo.. Welch, blown to pieces in the blizzard of Oct. 1880, and, af-
terward burned. It was fully insured, however. John Berry built a large
steam mill, and ran it a few months, when it was also burned in the winter of
1881. A constant shower of fire trom it came near burning ‘the whole town.

The first rehglous services in the vﬂlage were by Rev. E. H. Alden of Was-
«eca in 1872, in a tent every other week. Between times the tent was used for
a saloon.

The village was incorporated in 1876, but a defective charter causéd a. sec-
-ond incorporation in 1881. The mcorporatmn mcludes sectxons 4, 5, and 9.

* The Marshall school is now a graded school with four departments ‘and
about 200 pupils.

There are two church buildings, Methodist and Congregational, the latter a
fine church. | |

The county owns three buildings in the village, two offices. and one used for
a court room. _

The Marshall postoffice in a Presidential office. . W. Coleman succeeded
Whitney in 1875, C. F. Case followed in 1878, and S. D. How in 1883.

There are 17 two story brick buildings and several fine residences. The W.
& St. P. R. R. Co. have a general land othce.

The population of the town is mostly American, and iatellectually and so-
cially the equal of any community in the west.

The stores in the village mostly carry excentienally jlarge stocks of goods
and are doing a prosperous trade. The present busiess of the village is as
follows: '

MEeRCANTILE—A. C. Chittenden, J. Schutz, F. S. Wetherbee, O. Pehrson,
Edwards & Co., general stores; E. L. Healy, Humphrey & Ga'l, J. W. Wil-
liams,  groceries and crockery; J.P. Watson, R. M. Adzheon [hardware
and machinery; Youmans Bros. and Horton Lumber Co., lumver; Louis Janda
boots and shoes; C. M. Wilcox, W. Wakeman, A. B, Sweet druos S. But-
turfl, furniture; W. C. Kayser, books, stationery and tobaccos; M. Hooker,
stw.tlonery and tobaccos; Mrs. Hillyer, millinery; J. Price, John Russell,
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Mrs. Hicks, bakery and restaurant; Fred Watson, harness; Woodruff &
Wilher and F. Weikle. meat markets; Parsons & Wise, exclusive clothing.

TrRADES—E, J. Harrison, marble cutter; Arthur M. Nichols, R. B. Vonder-
smith, B. Vosburg, i)a.inters; J. McGandy, photographs; M. H. Gibson, Geo.
Heinmiller, C.J. Price, R. Curtis, blacksmiths; S. Marshall, wagon maker;
J. B. Murray, O. C. Philips, barbers. . |

PROFESSIONS—C. E. Persons, J. Armington, A Poaps, physicians; E. D. Alli-
son, dentist; Forbes & Seward, M. E. Ma.thews, M. B. Drew, .D.- F. Weymouth,
E. B. Jewett, E. A. Gove, attorneys; Revs. J. B. Fairbank, Congregational,
and J. W. Powell, Methodist; Geo. M. Durst, Miss Mikkelson, Miss Downie,
Mrxs. Durst, teachers.

MisceLLANEOUS—Messenger, C. F. Case; News, C. C. Whitney; elevators,
Van Dusen & Co., E. Frick, agent; Porter Milling Co., W. A. Hunter, agent;
T. King, grist mill; L. Nichols, livery; W. Keith, W. Simmons, H. Hoyt, ho-
tels, Geo. E. Johnson, cattle buyer; B. Wright, wind feed mill; Peterson & Co.,
tailors; D. G. Stewart, sewing machine agency; C. M. Wilecox, express agent;
H. M. Burchard railroad land agent; T. A. Woodruff, railroad agent; = Van
Winkle, telegraph operator; Chas Kent, collection agent. Stra.lo'ht & Co. have
a large creamery. Woodbury & Frick, own a skating rink.

Having the county seat, one railroad, and a pretty sure prospect ot two oth-
ers, Maishall's future is as bright as that of any town in western Minnesota.



TOWN OF LUCAS.

In the north-east corner of the county, and bounded north by Yellow Medi~
eine and east by Redwood counties, lies the town of Lucss; a rich agricultu-
ral district, and one of the fairest and best of Lyon County’s twenty townships..

The ideal Mmnesota town, in the minds of those who have paid attention te
the topngraphy of vur state, is one where rolling prairies and sparkii-ng
lakes alternate with irequency, thus giving, as it were, a dappled scenery no-
where found in such perfection as in the Gopher State. Lpeas is one of thore
towns. While the prairie is mostly dry, arable land with occasional fine mead~
ows o f rich native grass, free from éloughs and swamps, the water supply of
the town is ample without permanent rivers or creeks, in its many beautiful lit-
tle lukes which are scattered over the whole area of the town. There are sev-
en clear-water lakes of respectable size, with high banks, dry. beaches, well
stocked with fish and the resort of thousands of water-fowl, furnishing va~
riety and beauty to the prairie scenery, and unparalelled attractions to the set-.
tler and the sportsman. __ : '

In section 31s Sham Lake, not very large, nor very deep, but a prevy- little-
body ot water. In sections 4, 5, 8 and 9 a much larger body of water i found,.
called Cottonwood Lake, from several large cottonwood trees on the-east end:
There is also a grove of timber on the nerth shore. 1n section 11' 18 Lake-
Hamre, named from E. T. Hamre, a'settler near it. It has a little timber on
the south side. In section 17 a small lake is named Lake Susanon the- rail-
road maps, but called Bogus Lake by the Lucasites. On section 20 and2t is-
Lady Shoe Lake named from its supposed resemblance to that article. There-
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s some timber on the north side. In sections 23, 24, 25 and 26 Lady Slipper
L.ake, somewhat the shape of the last named, but larger, sleeps amid banks
‘Bare of timber. Just why the larger should be called u slipper and the small-
-«¥ & shee is one of those curiosities ot nomenclature that no fellow successfully
tries to find out. In section 36 is School Grove Lake, getting its name, proba-
3ly from its being on a school section and having a grove on its east end.

"These lakes are not, like the lakes of the country south of Minnesoﬂa., sur-
younded by swamp, but have beaches of sand, gravel and stone. There is us-
walky a'deposit of boulders around a part of them. The lakes, too, make very
Hitle waste land. Lucas has scarcely any waste land, but is - considered one
of the best towns for agricultural purposes in the west. The W. & St. P. R.
R Co: appreciated this fact to such an extent that they fixed the price of - their
ands in this town higher than in other towns equally distant from the railroad.
Smee then they have withdruwn from market about half therr lands there,
weserving, for purposes best known to themselves, the land in the northeast
Aalf of the town. '

"The epops of Lucas have uniformly been good, even in grasshopper years.
Mr. R. H. Price states that his lowest average of wheat, even in those times
was nine bushels per acie. In 1883, according to the assessor’s returns, there
were 2,187 acres of wheat sown, 698 acres of oats, 362 acres of corn, 127 aéres
-of barley, 20 acres of potatoes. and other crops sufficient to make up a total
acreage under cultivation of 3,418. By the same report the town had 191
mileh cows, 153 sheep with a yield of 1,268 pounds of wool, These last igures
~were considerably increased during the summer of 1883. There are 132 acres
of. forest trees planted and growing, and 817 rods set out on highways. This
-promises well for the future fuel supply of the town, and it is an industry that
will be more largely entered into in coming years. The benefits of cultivated
timmber on our prairies, both 1n furnisbing tuel, beauiifying the farm and en-
Bancing real estate values, is becoming better recognized and acted on each
Fent.

'T'he ehief obstacle to the rapid settlement and development of Lucas hereto-
fore has lain inits distance from railroad markets. This bas been considera-
bly everlocked because of its superiority of soil and lake attractions, and the
jown makes a good showing in its farm and home improvements, but with a
near railroad it would have been much more sought after and have made a
waueh better record than it has. This want of the town is now ina fair way to
be yemedied. A line of railroad from the south via Worthington and Tracy
was given a preliminary survey in 1883, and will probably run into or
sery near Lucas. This is one of the projected lines of the Rock Island system,
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and will probably be built to a northern connection with Fargo by the way of
Big Stone Lake. If built soon it must in all events, greatly benefit Lucas by
giving it & near market and better facilities for settlement.

The postoffices of the settlers of Lucas are Vineland, Wood Lake, Silliards in.
Yellow Medicine Co. and Marshall. Sham Lake postoffice was kept up for
some years by Mr. R. H. Price who also formerly had a store there, but tke
trouble of running it overbalanced its benefits, and it was discontinued some
two or three years ago.] |

The town has no native timber except that on the lakes before mentioned,
and most of the fuel is bought in Marshall, the trading point for the town.

Settlement was first made in Lucas about thirteen years ago. In Jume ef
1871 Wm. H. Slater’and R. H. Price came up from Olmstead county and seck
the first claims taken in the town. . Mr. Price built the first house, and is still
a vesident of the town. Mr. Slater removed to Pelican Rapids. Duriag the
same year Allend Christianson, Peter Oliason, E. T. Hamre, H. Dahl and Jas.
Wardrop took claims and settled in the town. Other settlers soon tollowed,
and the question of organizing and naming the town began to be discassed
In 1873 an organization was secured under the name of Canton. This nawe,
though seemingly a good one, was not satisfactory, and it was changed to Lis-
bon, another good rame, but no more satisfactory than the first. The name of °
Moe, after one of the supervisors, was t_hén tried, but was again changed fe
Lucas, which name seemed to,stick. '

*The airst town meetirig, held Aug. 5, 1873, resulted in the election of the fol-
lowing as the first officers of the town. | '

Jas. Wardrop, chairman; O. H. Dahl and John Moe, supervisors; R. ¥L
Price, clerk; N. T. Dahl, assessor and ‘treasurer; T. S. Norgaard and P. Y
Dahl, justices; R. J. Benjamin and Geo. Anderson constables.

In 1873 the cause of education was proved a factor of the public mind by tie
opening of the first school taught in the town in a small building built by 5
H .Price on section 2. The teacher was Ella Williams.

The first child born tu the town was Albert Erwin, Feb. 27, 1872; the frst
marriage that of D. R. Burdette and Alice M. Price, July 16, 1873; the first deatk
that of a son ot John Krog in winter of 1878.

The first sermon preached was by Rev. Joseph Williams, a pastor of the
United Brethren society. How much of the seed thus sown fell on stoay
ground or by the wayside, we have no means of. accurately measuring; baut
there arose an awakening of interest in the subject of the latter end of man
early in the town’s history, and there were soon formed two church organiza—
tions, the Norwegian Lutheran and the United Presbyterian. Rev. J. Husz+
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Kker, a foreign missionery for some years, had charge of the former society, and
Rev. B. McCullough of the latter.

There are quite a number of Scotch settlers in Lucas, largely from Canada
:and Nova Scotia. In the north part of the town there are several Scandina-
wians. There are also some German settlers and a good many Americans.
“The farms generally are thritty, and the farmers prosperous.

The settlement is principally on the even sections, having been largely ta-
‘ken as government claims. The odd sections, belonging to the W. & St. P. R.
R. Co. by a land grant, have not yet received many settler, though considera-
dle land has been sold. |

The present town officers of Lucas are Ole Hattlestad, chairman; John Mec-
Lennan and E T. Hamre, supervisors; E. S. Reishus, clerft J. C. Gray, treas-
arer;-J. A. H, Dahl, justice; Chris H. Dahl, constable,

‘The settlers of Lucas are distributed as follows:

Sec. 2. West halt is owned and occupied by R. H. Price, who has a fine
Farm on Sham Lake. Iver Nelson occupies the west half of the east half, and
N. Nelson lives on thenorth east forty.

See. 4. E, S. Reishus has the west half; Aarrestad brothers, the northeast
wquarter.

Sec. 5. L. P. Aaberg has the noertheast quarter.

Sec. 6. G. Anderson, northeast quarter; J. A H. Da.hl. southeast; N. Ros-
wold, northwest, M. Rosvold, southwest.

Sec. 7. J.H. Anderson has a torty in northeast quarter.

Sec. 8. C. H. Dahl, northwest; A. Barstad, southwest; A. Anderson, south-
~east; Mr. Conrad, northeast. There is also a school house in this section.

Sec. 10. P. Eliason, southwest; E. T. Hamre, southeast; A. Christianson,
aortheast.

Sec. 11. Has a school house near the center.

Sec. 12. F. Stroschein, northwest; Jas. Wardrop, southeast; T. Bell, north-
~aast.

Sec, 14. J. Johnson, northeast; A. Miro, southwest. J. W. Blake has the
wmorthwest. '

Sec. 15. A Slette in northeast.

Sec. 16. J.Medboe, 80 in southeast; O. O. Reinholl, in northwest.

Sec. 18. Ole Hattlestad, southwest; M. T. Ness, northwest.

Sec.22. H. J. Meilke, northwest; J. Krog, southwest; J. A. Smith, north-
«east, C. Peterson, southeast.: '

" Sec. 24. J. C. Lines, southwest.
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Sec. 26. J. J. Hunziker, east halt; C. Kartowitz, east half west half; F. G.
Stroschein, Jr., west half of west half.
Sec. 28. . J. McDonald, south quarter; J. C. Gray, 320 acres, west.

Sec. 30. Jas. Galbraeth, northeast; John Bonniman, northwest; Kobt.
Chalmers, southeast, J. C. Townsend, 80 in southwest.

Sec. 31. John D. Smith, southwest. |

Sec. 82. Robt. Cummings, northwest; Wm. Stewart. southwest; John Mc-
Lellan, northeast; Thos. Chaimers, southeast. There is a school house on
morth line of 32.

Sce. 84. Jas. Cruikshank, 240 in northwest J as. Robertson, southwest,
Geo. Russell, southeast.

Sec. 36. ‘P. Schlemmer has a farm in this section, the rest is school land.

"The last assessed valuation of Lucas was $54.140.

There are three school districts in Lucas. Dist. No. 19 embraces sections 1,
2, 8, 10, 11, 12, 18, 14, 15. It had 34 pupils by last school report. § Dist. No.
15 embraces sections 4, 5.6, 7,8, 9, 16, 17, 18. It has 19 pupils reported.
“The rest of the town isin district No. 41. Each district has a school house.

'The projected line of the Duluth. North Shore & Southwestern R. R. runs
through the town from north to south.



TOWN OF VALLERS.

The town ot Vallers is town 113, range 41, and is bounded north by Yellow
Medicine county, east by Lucas, south by Fairview and west by Westerheim,

The first settlement in Vallers was made by Johannes Anderson on section:
6 in 1869.

The town was surveyed early, but the surveyor neglecting to make proper-
mounds, the stakes were mostly burned down by prairie fires, and settlement in
the town was, without doubt, delayed considerably by the fact that the sec--
tion corners could not be found.

In 1872 Ole O.Brenna Sr.., Michael Knudson and A. Malde located farms,
and in 1873 N. L. Jones, N, M. Fislée, Isaac Ulsen and perhaps one or two oth-
ers tock up government land in the town, and efforts were made to get an or-
gamzation. It could not be effected, however, till 1876 when the first town
officers were elected at an election held in O. Brenna's house. They were, .S
W. Laythe, chairman; John Anderson and M. K. Snortum, supervisors; Ole:
O. Brenna Jr. clerk and justice; Ole O. Brenna Sr. assessor.

The report that the first school was taugbt by J. L. Robinson is incorreet in
the sense of a public school. He taught a private school on his claim in
1879 tor the benefit of his brothet’s and sister's children. The first public:
school was taught by Miss Lavina Day in 1880, A school house was bwilt the
same year on the north line of section 29.

Church services were first held in 1877 at the house of Ole-O. Brenna by Rev.
Knud Thorstenson, a Lutheran, and a church society was soon after orga.nizéd..
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" The first birth was John Anderson in 1872.  The first marrnage was that of

Ole O. Brenna Jr. and Anna Olson, Dec. 23, 1877. The first death was thai
-of Ole J. Engen in August 1877..

"The-only postoffice in the town is atOle O. Brenna's on section 4. 1t was
-established soon aftter the settlement of ‘Mr. O. Brenna, who has been. post-

master since its estabhshment. The name of the office, by some misspeling,
became Brenner and so rémains.

The name of the town has undergone a similar change, probably from. thé -
same cause. The Norwegian word Vala, meaning a valley, was intended i_or _
it, given by the O. Brennas, we understand. But as the name was not plamnly
‘written or properly spelled 1t was thought to be Vallers, and so named. To
one familiar, with the topography of the town the appropriateness of the name
does not instantiy appear. Drained by Three Mile Creek on the south line
and the Yellow Medicine on the north, the town of Vallers occupies the high
land betwéen these two water courses, and is about as  far removed from a
valley as any point in the county. The name may however have been mtend-
ed as a reminder ot some vala in Norway.

The town of Vallers isa town of egceptionally good soil. Everythmg that
grows in Minnesota will do well here.

There were in 1883 1,115 acres under cultivation of which 773 were wheat;
283 oats; 85 corn 19 barley.

There were at the same tlme 58 acres of cultivated trees and 240 rods om .
thhways ‘

Vallers has two orgamzed school districts. The northwest quarter of the
township constitutes No. 56, with 19 pupils reported. There is a school
bhouse on section 8. The southwest quarter of the town forms district No. 48,

with 11 pupils reported. School house on section 29. The east half ofthe
town 18 not yet organized.

'The Jast assessed valuation of the town is $‘79 782.

The town has at present no trading point, Matshall heing its market town;
but the proposed railroad line from Duluth to Yankton will undoubtedly 'give

"the town a station at or near its southeast corner.

The Yellow Medicine river cuts the northwest corner of the town and Three
Mile Creek makes a bend into it3 south tier ot sections.

On section 29 and adjoining sections there is a large marsh, called the Big
Slough, which is the home of thousands of water fowl and the resort of sports
men in propér season. |

Considerable state land, mostly university land, is still vacant in the town,
and the Southern Minnesota R. R. Company have some sections there otill u
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pold. These make a vacant traet of country through the central and ‘eastern
‘portions that the inhabitants would like to see settled. The town of Vallers is
settled mostly by Norwegians, who are, as a general thing, thriftily located in
eomfortable homes and on good farms. There are one or two Iceland tami-
lies here, and m the south part of the township a few Americans have taken
farms. The settlers are located as follows:

Section 2, se G. O. Aamat; sw H. Olson; nw A. 8. Malde.

Section 4, n} E. Varpnes; se M. Knpdson; sw Ole O. Brenna Sr.

Section 6, e} ne Andrew O. Anderson; nw John Anderson; sw Ole Ander-
son; se O. A. Anderson. '

Section 8, e} sw T. Tostensen; se 0. J. Ullen; ne Ole O. Brenna Jr.

Section 12, nw E. S. Roti; se J. Roti.

Section 18, sw1. Olsen; nw M. Osnes.

Section 20, nw . H. Miller; sw C. O. Hovde; ne S. Thon, se R. Haaskjold.

Section 22, nw K. Swenson; ne Ole Lende.

Section 26, ne H. Solberg; n} se H. W. Throop; s} se A Baldwm, nw J. L.

Robinson.
Section 28, ni S. H. Thorsness.

Section 30, ne Ole E. Borthus; nw M. O’Tool.

Section 32, sw N. L. Jones: se N. M. Fisk.

Section 34, sw Cox Brothers; e} Langdon farm.

During the Indian war of - 1862 some of the skirmishing, it is thought ex-
tended into this locality, as a skeleton was dug upon section 84 some two or
three years ago which was supposed to be that of a soldier. A mask thought
to be once a soldier’s cap rested over the face, and other signs convinced the
finders that 1t was the skeleton of one ot the scouts or soldiers ot the Indian
‘war.

Section 34 has been a historic section in Vallers, and has furnished much ma-
terial for gossip among the depizens of that “valley.”” N.B. Langdon took up
the east half of the section several years ago, opening thereon the ‘“Brookfield
farm,”’ stocked it with fine sheep, erecied good buildings and made the farm
famous as a sheep farm. There was not much domestic harmony, however,
between Mr. and Mrs. Langdon, and the latter was one day found dead with
chlorotorm in the room. No especial reison was ever discovered for the step
at that time, but the coroner’s jury bronght in a verdict of smicide. This
shocking event gave rise to much talk in the town and outof it. Mr. Lang-
don from that time fell into habits of dissipation, from which he had for sev-
eral years kept free, and the stock tarm began to lose its fame through neg-
Ject and bad management. A short time after the suicide of his wife Lang-
don went to St. Paul, and while there married a Mrs. Farrington. This mar-
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riage was not s happy one. Langdon repented of it before the weck was out,
and returned to Vallers ulone, where his new wife soon followed him, de-
termined not to be shaken off from her husband and her acquired interest in
the Brookfield farm, A domestic fight that became the talk of the country en-
sued and ended every night, like a Ledger story; with a *To be continued.’™
Mrs. Langdon was a woman of remarkable grit, and dared death and destruc-
tion for her rights, sticking to the farm through threats of everything terrible-
and some actual assault and battery, out of which grew law suits, and finally
desertion of the field by Langdon and peaceable possession by Mrs. L. except
by law suits to exclude her. The farm was stripped of everything saleable,.
and the Brookfield stock farm is now but an episode of bistory.



TOWN OF WESTERHEIM.

Westerheim is one ofthe north tier of towns, lying south ot the line of Yel-
low Medicine county and bounded east by Vallers, south by Grandview, west
by Nordland. By government survey it is town 113, range 42.

The town 13 watered by the Yellow Medicine river which runsinto the town
trom the west and flows across the town, going out at the northeast corner.

The town is well watered by this and the small water courses that lead inte
it, and it is one of the best tracts in the county for either grazing, dairying or
general agriculture. Though it has several miles of river there is no native
timber except one large cottonwood on section 19, a land mark known as the
lone tree. There was another similar tree on section 8, but it fell a sacrifice to
hard times during the bloskade and fuel famine of 1881.

The first settlement was made by Halvor A. Nyland in 1871 on section 30.
‘The same year Thorbjin Aadson settled on the same section.

No town organization was effected tilll 1876, the first election being held aé
the house of P. Johnson May 9th of that year. The first town officers were
Halvor Nyland, chairman; O. J. Moe and Hans Samuelson, supervisors; O. L.
Ursen, clerk; Andrew Lee, treasurer; Thorbjon Huso, ‘ASSESSOr'; John Ilstad
and H. P. Johnson, justices; R. Hanson and T. Opdahl, constables.

In June 1874 the first marriage, a double one, was celebrated, H. A. Ny-
land and Inger Olson, and T. A. Huso and Carrie Olson being the parties most
interested. Mr. Nyland’s wite died in Septemoer of the same year, being the
first death in the town. The first birth was a daughter to John Ilstad in 1873.
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No public school was taught in the town till 1877 whenr Knud Fodnes tahght
» term.

The nearest. railroad station and trading point to Westerheim is Minneota.

Prior to the taking of several sections of railrcad land in this town by Bishop:
Ireland for the use of his Minnesota colony the settlement of Westerheim “was-
almost exclusively Scandinavian, mostly from Norway. Some leelanders have
settled in the town, and in the south and southeast portions a few Americans.
Belgian and French have located homes.

There are now two organized schooldistricts. All of the east half of the
township except sections 34, 35, 86 constitute school distriet No. 8, with &
reported scholarship of 47. District No. 54 is formed ot sections 4, 5,8, 9, 16,
17, 20, 21, 28, 29 with 27 pupils. The school officers of the district are Snori
Hognason, director; O. L. Orsen, treasurer; Q. I. Leeland, clerk.  Both dis-
tricts have built school houses, and the educational interests of the town are
properly looked after. |

District No. 8 has a school house on section 11 which is 18 by 24,°seated
with the Racine perforated seats. Ca.pa.clty 40 pupils.  Dastrict orga.mzed in
1877. Present eurolled scholarship, 41.

The name of the town, meaning Western home, was very appropriately
ehosen by a people who appreciated the word home, and who saw in the fer-
tile acres of the town the requisites of successful farm life. There are many
thrifty tarms in the town, and good buildings, which indicate that the settlers
have come to stay.

The assessor’s report of 1888 gives the town 2,905 acres under cultivation,
of which there are 1,607 in wheat, 514 oats, 208 corn, 528 barley, 26 potatoes,
22 flax. There were by same report 70 acres ot cultivated trees, 415 rods set-
on highways.

The last assessed valuation of Westerheim was $39,236.

Its present towu officers are Ole L. Orsen, chairman; J. C. Rogde and Snori
Hognason, supervisors; Ole I. Lecland, clerk; Oluf L. Orsen, treasurer; O. J.
Moe, assessor; Geo. Richardson and Ole I.. Leeland justices; Wm. Marshall.
and Elling Oxaas, constables.

Westerheim’s present residents are located as follows:

Section 2, ne K. J. Hall; se S. Sigurson; sw Ole Thompson; nw K. T. Thom-
son. '

Section 4, ne C. Johnson: se E. J. Oxaas; sw John Peterson; nw S. Hog-
nason.

Section 8, nw M. Oliver; sw Olut Orson; e} Joseph Josephson.
Section 10, w} Andrew Hellickson; w} e} S. Johnathanson; e} e} B. Gill-
eson.
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Section 12, sw K. Broughton; e} nw and w} ne Hans Samuelson; ne Henry
Samuelson.

Section 14, ne John Stensrud; se E. Fjeldstad; w} se and e} sw G. Johnsonr;
nw G. Peterson.
. Section 16, nw E. Bjornson.

Section 17, sw Walter Walsh.

Section 18, se 80 Lars Orson; rest of east half, Ole L Orson; swO. J. Moe.

Section 20, nw B. L. Leeland, s} H. P. Johnson; ne O. I. Leeland. -

Section 22, n} nw E. Cassady; s} nw W. Sanden; ne Alex DeWitt.

Section 24, ne Chris Johnson.

Section 26, se Wm. Marshall.

Section 28, nw J. C. Rogde; sw F. DeRen.

Section 30, n} H. Aadson Nyland; s} ne R. Hanson; se Ole O. Skogen; s} aw
J. Distad; sw A. DeZutter.

Section 32, nw R. Hanson; sw Andrew Lee; se Opdahl.

Section 84, nw D. Van de Norstyne; sw Andrew Opdahl; se Van Halsbeck.

Near center of east line of section 8 the Yellow Medicine river is spanned by
a truss bridge 128 feet long. This bridge was built by L. Jacobson. Funds
were appropriated by the state legislature in 1888, under supervision ot O. L.
Orsen, O. 1. Leeland and Snori Hognason.

O. L. Orsen has on his farm in section 18 a flowing well, perhaps the only
artesian well in the county. It is, however, but ten feet deep, and the water
was found atter boring through a stratum of soapstone underlying six or sevea
feet of blue clay. The water is strongly tincturcd with iron it is said.



TOWN OF STANLEY.

‘Stanley, which is town 112, range 40, is bounded east by Redwood county,
and north by the town of Lucas. It is a prairie country, having very little tim-
ber, A few trees are scatfered along the two rivers which unite in Stanley,
and a part of the grove on the south shore of Swan Lake, which hes on the
eastern line, runs over into this town. But, as in all thrifty prairie towns, the’
settlers of Stanley have given considerable attention to the cultivation of forest
trees, and substantial young groves that are full of future promise, can now
be seen in all parts of the town. | |

The assessor's report for year 1883 gives 81 acres of forest trees planted.
This is not as large an acreage as is shown by Lucas or Fairview, but perhaps
the assessor was weaker in addition than those of Stanley’s sister towns. An
assessor with a keeun vision and healthy imagination is an invaluable assist-
ant in a fown’s statistics. ,

The reports of the United States census takers demonstrate that the esti-
mates of local assussors are uniformly too low, and that the towns are, as a
rule, better.off than the statistics make them.

Stanley’s agricultural statistics for the year 1883 show a total acreage under
cultivation of 2,175, of which 1,259 were %n wheat, 512 in oats, 224 in corm,

134 in barley, 18 in potatoes, 14 in timothy, 12 in flax.  This was an increase
over 1882 of 483 acres for total cultivation. The lust average yield of wheat
reported is between 14 and 15 bushels per acre; oats, nearly 40; corn,a frac-
tion over 17; barley, about 24}; potatoes, 140, flax about 10,
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The town had in the spring ot‘ 1883. 101 cows, and 120 sheep yielding 540

pounds of wool.

The settlement of Stanley dates back to December 1867 when '.I.‘ w. Ca.ster
located on section 24. His son Hugh was born in 1868 and was the first birth
in the town. Daniel Munro settled on section 12 in 1870. In 1876 a town or-
ganization was effected, and an election ordered in September. The town wag
at this time named Delavan. This name was changed to Stanley, and an elec-
tion had March 12, 1878, at which time the first town officers were elected as
follows:

F. B. Patterson, chairman; C. A. Knox and C. H. Currie, supervisors; D. T.
Ludwig, clerk; Edward Wilson, assessor; 8. C. Knox, treasurer; Duncan Me-
Kinley and Edward Wilson, justicest Thomas Savage, constable.

The first sermon preached in the town was by Rev. E. Wilson, a Methodist,
at Mr. Currie’s, July 13, 1873, nearly seven years after the first settlement .of
the town. It is said that Caster and his neighbors during those seven years
had grown lax in Sunday observance and were greatly in need of religious in-
struction.

" The first school was tanght by Ann Munro at the house of James White in
the summer ot 1875, school district No. 29 having been organized the fall be-
fore. The school house was built in 1880,

Ceresco postoffice, with Caster as postmaster, was estabhshed in 18 72 It is
now discontinued. ' -

The first marriage was Daniel Munro and Anun White, November 12, 1874.

The first death was Charles Knox, November 1876.

‘The assessed valuation of the town in 1883 was, personal property, $5,823;
real estate $30,845,

The town of Stanley is one of uniformly good agricultural lands, free from
swamp or stony ridges, and almost every section is well adapred to general
farming and grazing purposes. The hay lands of Stanley are very valuable
and ample for the needs ofthe town.

The town is well watered by the Redwood River and Three Mile Creek, the
two uniting in section 17, The Redwood runs across the town from west to
east. _
- Swan Lake is on the eastern edge, touching sections 1 and 12. The lake is
mostly in Redwood county: It i3 a beautitul lake with wooded shores and a
favorite resort for sportsmen and picnic parties. '

There are three orga_nize'd‘ school districts in Stanley; the mnortheast quarter
of the town being No. 84, in which 14 pupils are reported; ‘the northwest quar-
ter No, 29, with 18 pupils; the southwest quarter and sections2, 27, and 84
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Ko 16, with 15 pupils. The rest of the town is not yet organized. .There aro
school houses in sections 12, 8 and 28.

The residents of Stanley or those owning houses there are distributed as fol-
lows ‘

Section 1, nwdJ. McFagen.

Section 2, e} J. White; sw Munro; nw John Garry,

Section 4, ne W. Stewart; se T. McKinley; nw D. McKinley.

Section 6, ne Geo. Michie; sw J. Glashen; nw G. Lowe.

Section 8, sw J. F. Gibb; se W. T. Neill; n} James Dick.

Section 10, sw James Garry; se J. Russell.

Sectlon 12, s} R. Cavanagh: nw John Noble,

Section 14, e} C. H. Currie; sw T Savage and E. Basler.

Section 15, nw W. Warnke and H. Wenholz.

- Section 18, se Mrs. G. Palmer; sw Mrs Heskett -and Mrs. Knox.

Section 19, nw-H. G. Heilman; sw R. Heilman.

Section 20, nw N. Wasson; sw H..Lovelace; ne C. A. Knox.

Section 22, s} Geo. Camp and Fred Beltz.

Section 24. center, Mrs. W. Wilson.

Section 26, ne P. Kenndy; se Geo. Bissett.

Section 28, ne D, H. Tichnor; nw S, S. Knox; sw C. E. Patterson.

Section 30, n} Wm. Rich; se T. D. Ludwig; sw Chas. Kennedy.

Seection 32, nw Chas. Higbee; ne H. J. Sprague.

Section 84, sw D. N. Mason.

The population ot Stanley is mostly of Scotch deseent m the north half of the
town, and American in the south half. In thritt, enterpnse, general ntelli-
gence, and all the requisite social and moral qualities, the people of Stanley
are second to those of no town in the west.

Marshall is the postoffice and trading point for Stanley at present; though
the town has railroad prospects that may in the near future give the town one
or more railroad station and the advantages that go with such acquisi-
tions. The preliminary survey of the branch line of the Rock Island company
mdicated that Stanley would probably be one of the towns passed through

and the Duluth, North Shore & Southwestern company’s line from 8t. Cloud,

via Wilmar and Marshall to Pipestone and Yankton will very likely cut across
a part ot the town.

But with or without any other railroad facilities than those now furnished at
Marshall, the town ot Stanley offars an attractive field to shose looking torfarm
homes. With unsurpassed soil, rich meadows, rivers and lake atir actnbns
there can be little said in praise of any township of the county that cannoi be

said of Stanley. Its futureas a rich agricultural town is as unquestioned as
the tuture of the state.



TOWN OF FAIRVIEW.

_ Fairview lies six miles from both the east and north lines of the county, be-
ing in town 112, range 41. It is bounded onthe north by Vallers, east by
Stanley, soath by Lake Marshall and west by Grandview. |

The town was first settled in 1870 by Wm. 8. Reynolds who moved here:
from Pa. Joseph Carter settled in the town about the same time. The next
year J. W. Elliott.” Seth Johnson, Richard Blake, John Hanlon, R. C. Beach,
O. Marron, W. C. Robinson, John Brown, F. D. Wasson, M. Atherton, R.
Henshaw, Henry Gibbs and H. G. Howard seftled in 1873. Tkis gaye the
town the character of a thrifty settlement, and inspired the desire for organi-
zation, which was effected in 1878, the first election being held at the house of
J. W. Elliott. The tollowmg ticket was elected, constituting the first officers
of Fairview:

Harmon Lovelace, chairman and justice; John W. Elliott and C. M. John-
son, supervisors; John Buchanan, clerk and justice; B. C. Emery, assessor;
O. Marron, treasurer; W. S. Reynolds and A. Williams, constables.

With the organization of the town came also church and sckool organization.
Rev. Geo Spaulding settled here in 1873 and gave rebgious services at his
house. The first school was taught- by Ada Kennedy in 1874 1n a granary be
longing 1o Thos. Lindsey.

"Fhese were years of compara.tive prosperity and gilt-edged hope, and the
settlers who came here came to found homes for the tauture. The first mar-
riage was that of Walter Woodruff and Julia Lovelace; the first birth, Walter
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Beynolds, in April 1871: and the first death that of Mary Gibbs, mot.hel of
Henry Gibbs, in December 1871 at the age of 90 years. There have been
many marriages and births since but very few deaths. The death of Henry
Gibbs occurred in the winter of 1874 as the result of being lost in a blizzard.
‘He and his wite were visiting at a neighbor’s house, and started home in the
evening with an ox team. On the way home & blizzard suddenly arose, and
the party soon lost their way and drifted with the storm over iuto Stanley,
where they ran into a slough and broke down. The only thing then possible
to do was to fix as much ot a wind break as possible with the- wagon box and
wait for daylight. Daylight came; but the blizzard still raged, acd raged
through the day and night following as only the storms of the northwest can

-rage. When it sufficiently cleared to see the way, Mr. Gibbs made out to
reach a house and send a party for his wife, who was rescued and recovered
with no serious loss except the partial amputation of a foot. Mr. Gibbs how-
ever, had been so badly frozen that he soon died.

Fairview, as 1ts name 1mplies, is a beautiful prairie township which, espec-
ially in early summer, spreads out a landscape of lovliness nowhere else equal-
ed but on the green, rolling prairies, and under the olear atmosphere of
Minnesota.

lts soil is of the richest in the west, and among its thirty-six sections there is
sca.rcely a waste acre. When its fertile lands are all settled and improved it
will be one of the richest agricultural townships in the west. |

It is watered by the Redwood river, which runs in a northerly direction inte
the town to near the center, when it turns east and runs into Stanley; alse by
Three Mile Creek, which by a large bend into Vallers cuts the northwest and
northeast corners of Fairview, also running out into to Stanley. Th ere are a
fow trees along the streams, but nothing that deserves the name of timber.
The fuel supply of the town is obtained at Marshall, except on two or three
farms where cultivated timber has grown large enough to be used for fuel
Timber culture in Fairview has been thriftily attended to, and the last asses-
sor’s report gives the town 132 acres of growing timber. There are seversl
very fine groves. - :

In 1888 there were 3,962 acres under cultivation, of which there were 1,970
of wheat, 1,060 oats, 569 corn, 286 barley, 43 potatoes, 4 flax.

There were by same report 109 cuws, and 202 sheep yleldmg 1,040 pounds
ot wool.

'l‘here are two organized school districts in Fairview. The northeast quar-
ter of the town and sections 22, 28, 24, constitute No. 26, school house .in
morthwest quarter of section 14. Number of scholars reported, 19. The
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northwest quarter ot the town and sections 20 and 21 make No. 27, w:th school
house on the noith lne_ of section 17; 22 scholars reported. ~ The south two
tiers of sections, except section 30 are in Marshall independent district No. 8.
The settlers of Farview are mostly Americans and intellectual ihrifty farm-
ers, who are prospering and building up handsomé and comfortable homies.
The present residents or those owning houses are distributed as follows:
Section 2 is entirely owned by the Weymouth family, D, F. Weymouth hav-
ing & house on the northeast quarter. .
Section 3, s} D. Alexander.
Section 4, ne M. P. Jewett; nw Cox Bros.; sw H. Edwards.
Section 6, ne B. C. Beach; se J. L. Gee.
Section 7, ne C. L. Wiley; se Philip Rue.
Section 8, nw A Paul; sw Neill; se O. Marron; ne Mrs. Meacham-"
Section 10, nw A. and B. Hanlon; ne G. M. Robinson; se W. C. Robinson.
.Section 11, Rev. Graves.
Section 12, s} nw O. F. Walter; sw I. Lmdsey
Section 14, ne B. C. Emery; nw 1. Lindsey; sw and 8} se Alex and D. D.
Section 15, Whitney & Keith.
Forbes.
Section 17, se F. J. Parker.
Section 18, n} ne J. Hanlon; s} ne M. Hanlon; se H. Smith; swJ. A. Huh-
‘ter; nw R. Blake.
:Section 20, n} J. W. Dickey; se H. G. Howard.
!'Séctign 21, sw Kinney; w} se W. P Thayer; e} ne L. K. Thaver.
Section 22, ne J. Brown and R. Henshaw; sw F. D. Wasson.
‘Section 24, ne W. D. Lovelace and D. T. Hance. '
Section 26, sw John Cummings.
Section 27 s} Jas, Lawrence.
Section 28, ne E. C.. Pierce; se M. Potter; sw Rev. Spalding; nw A. C.
Forbes.
Section 30, ne A. Baldwin; nw Seth Johnson. sw D. Thomas; se L. Tichnor.
Section 32, ne E. B. Jewett; se E. A. Edwards. s} sw Mrs. Coleman.
Section 34, nw J. W, Elliott; se W. S. Reynolds.
Section 86, se 120 in w} E. O. Barnard.
Considerable railroad land has been sold m Fairview, and a good dea.l of
land is under cultivation, that has no buildings on it,
The last assessed valuation of Fairview was, personal, $1 2,842; real, $86,996.



CATHOLIC COLONY OF GHENT.
TOWNS OF GRANDVIEW, WESTERHEIM AND VALLERS,

e ——— e —

The Arst question asked by  Catholic s intent one migration is whether or ne
they can receive the consolations of their rehgion.

After starting his colonies, Right Rev. Bishop lreland of St. Paul met those
wishes, and attracted to our state many rich and ‘moral people. In order to
organize divine worship, the enterprising bishop tries to put the Catholics- all
‘together, and also he enables them to support their priests and build churches.

In Lyon county he reserved thé five northwest townships for Catholics. He
made from Nordland and Eidsvold the colony of Minneota for the Irish and
English people: and from Grandview, WeSterheim, and Vallers the colony of
Ghent for the Flemish and Canadian people Here we will speak for the lat-
ter colony. o

It was only in 1881 that the colonists began to arrive in Ghent. Over the
immeasurable ocean lies a small land the most thickly settled and the beat
cultivated in the world. -Itisthe kingdom of Belgium. No larger than 10
counties of Minresota it contains nearly 6,000,000 inhabitants, 462 in a square |
mile! so thaton an average each Belgian should not have two acres of land.
Every spot of land is cultivated with extreme care, and whole Belgium seems
1o be the agricultural garden of Europe. | |

But such a dense population makes great concurrence amongst the laborers.
Heavy rents and taxes are to be paid, and manure, weeding and toiling are
very expensive. |
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The enticing pamphlets about the Catholic colonies reached those aotive
people. ¥ Many were moved on hearing from that immense tertile prairie land
which claims willing hands fo become very fertile. But the old people, feel-
ing themselves very comfortable at home, do not move as quickly as the bold
Americans. There came abont 50 Belgian lamilies, and others are preparing
10 follow. :

The pioneer ot all these settlers was Mr. Angel VanHee. He was conducted
here by Right Rev. Bishop Ireland and by his brother canon Peter VanHee, a
welllinformed man living in Liverpool. He was so much pleased with the ap-
pearance of the soil of Ghent that he made immediately his choice on the very
land where he 18 now living. Though he traveled through the whole country,
he did not'find a better place; and he bought half a section. Immediately he
hired more than 20 teams, and before starung he saw 100 acres broken. Then
he went to Flanders, a co unty of Belgium, to get his wite and nine children,
and to give good information to his friends. Returning, he built a large farm
house, which still remains the largest vt the conntry.

Meanwhile, to atfract the Flemish people as to a new Flanders, the former
name of the village of Grandview was changed to the name of the old city of
¥landers, Ghent.

The family of Mr. VanHee Mr. David VanHee and the widow of Mr. Modest

VanHee, bought large tracts of land, and built fine store houses .n European

tyle. Mr. De Zutter took half a section of Jand; Mr. Vandewoestyne, Mr.
Decock and Messrs. Vergote and Foulon bought improved farms of 160 acres.

In January 1883 Father Cornelis, pastor of Minneota, went to Belgium and
Holland and gave lectures on the colony of Ghent. Many were moved. With
him came-Father Y. Devos, who was appointed pastor of Ghent; Mr. J. Lam-
bert, several farms; Mr. Princen, who purchased sn improved farm near
town; Messrs. Schreiber, Haerts, Maertens, Depuydt , Messine, Dicken, Siuidy

and they all settled on large farms, and built comfortable houses. Messrs:
Clayes, Peters, VandenBogaerde, Crombez, Baumans, Delmeule, Hendrick,
Riviere, have veen looking around till now for other business.

Nearly every week there were new-comers buying railroad land or improv-
ed farms; for instance, Messrs. Dereu, VandenAbeele, VanSprundel, Vankeu-
len, Engels, Dobbeldere, Blauwette. Browers. Mr. Maenhoudt has movedto
Marshall to rent an improved farm. There is now an impulse given, and
many more will come, provided the emigrants continue to enjoy this country.

Meanwhile there was rapid immigration of French Canadians from Kanka-
ke Co., Ill. Finding themselves too thickly settled in that state, those coura-
geous people were looking around not only in Minnesota, but also in Iowa
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and Dakota, but they preferred our state. Two energetic men, Mr. Letourneau,
and Mr. Regnier, came during the summer 1882. They traveled through
some soutnwestern counties, especially through Pipestone, and finally prefer-
red the colony of Ghent. '

Immediately they bought a great quantity of land, and acted with such
activity that in 1882 they had more than 3,000 acres of R. R. land, and 1,000
acres more in the followmg summer of 1883.

Mr. Letourneau became agent. of the depot, and his oldest son agent ot the
elevator for Mr. Van Dusen; his two other sons purchased land near the town.
Mr. Paradis bought a store house and 240 a>res of land; his sons, Amilien and
Cyrille; 240 acres; his nephews, Suprenant-Lord and Lord Paiadis, more thanm
half a section; Messrs. Antony Paradis, Suprenant-Prairie and Metty entered
large improved farms, . Mr. Regnier and son bought nearly a section; Mr.
Carron has 400 acres; Mr. Lebeau now has 320, and both bmlt a large
and handsome farm house in American style. Mr. Padnaud has 80 acres; Mr.
Duchene, Mr. Nevell, Mr. Emilien Surprenant each 160; Mr, Carron has 200
acres in Vallers. Some others haye bought land and are expected next spring.

The arrival of these people in spring was very encouraging. They filled a
whole train, several freight cars and a coach. There were furniture, horses
and cattle enough to provide a whole township. There were about 50 persons
and more than one Illinois horse for every one.

We have also some Irish Catholics, Messrs. Cavanaugh, Ford Cassidy, ete.
and some Germans, as Messrs. Schreiber, Haerts, etc. The arrival of these
new-comers was saluted with favor by all intelligent Americans as being a
great benefit for the country, for they brought in a good deal of money; they
raised the value of property; and they gave occasion to sell improved farms
dearer than anywhere on the prairies of Minnesota, Hence they were always
welcomed among the old settlers and treated by nearly all hke brothers.

The village though young and small is very thriving, having a depot and an
-elevator; Mr. Soucheray has a stock of general merchandise, and Mr. Emilien
Paradis has also established a store. Mr. Gets has a hotel and a tinware
shop; Mr. Vergote has a blacksmith shop; Mr. Cool is a carpenter and wagon
maker; and Messrs. Lebeau, Paradis and Carron were well-known carpenters
in Chica go; Mr. Angel VanHee and Mr. F. Gets are preparing a brickyard for
next summer, Brick making is very well known among the Flemish, who all
live in brick houses in their fatherland.

The first house of worship was a Methodist chapei which still remains. There
are nearly three hundred Catholics around Ghent, but as new-comers they
cannot afford to build a church immediately. They are preparing to build a
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large church next summer. The gentlemen of the town have already given 2
concert to provide church furniture. . They are preparing a new one, mostly
in Bnglish, so that everybody ean understand them. '

Since June 1883 Rev. Father Y.Devos has been among them. They are so-
assiduous to divine offices that they attend not only the sacrifice of the mass,
‘but also the vespers, coming twice to the meeting every Sunday. They feel
very happy when then they can relish the ceremonies of their old religion.
Two very good musicians, Mr. Foulon and “Mr. Vergote, furnish gcod singing
during the services. There are few congregations where so many languages
are spoken. When he addresses the people the pastor has to speek Flemish
French, Enghsh and German. The Latin used 1n diviue office is the only com-
‘mon language which is generaly understood by all. As soon as they hear the
Latin language, which they heard in their younger days and in their, distant
fatherland, they feel themselves at home in their old church, and they are
very happy to see and hear the pious ceremonies of their worship.

There is now a bad organization of the school districts. = We have three dis-
trict schools. but the nearest school honse is more than two miles from town.
Very zealous for instruction, Father Devos erected a tree school in town. Itis
taught by Miss Hanna Lester from England. and not only the children but
girown persons go o school to learn the English language, so as to be able to
converse with their American neighbors. In their love for instruction the
county commissioners are ready to make better arrangements for the public
schools of Ghent, :

We hope in a few years to make of Ghent a thriving and hapoy city, a
new home as joyous as we left in our fatherland.

Rev. Y. DEvos.



THE NORWEGIAN MUTUAL FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY.

The Norwegian Mutual Fire Insurance Company of Eidsvoid, Lyon Co.,
Minnesota was organized February 22d, 1879, at the house of ‘Guller Peterson,
on section 14 in town of Westerheim, Lyon Co. Articles of incorporation and
by-laws previously prepared by Mr. E. K. Kjorness and Mr. Ole L. Orsen were
then unanimously adopted and signed by 28 persons, who collectively owned
property to the amount of $27,500, which they desired to have insured.

The first board of directors were E. K. Kjorness, president; Ole L. Orsen,
secretary; I. L. Kolhel, treasurer; Ole Brusven, T.S, Norgaard, H. T. Oak-
land and E. Bergman, directors.

In 1880 the company commenced business, each member paying $2 for
membership and 25 cents for each one hundred dollars insured, to pay losses
-occasioned by fire or lightning, and in case of a heavy loss an assessment will
‘be made on the insured property every member to pay his pro rate share of all
losses and all necessary expenditures.

' The terrltory of the company is composed of 12 townzhips as fullows: Eids-.
vold, Nordland, Westerheim, Vallers, Grandview and |Lucas in Lyon Co., and
the towns of Swede Prairie, Normania, Sannes, Hazelrun, Friendship and
Tyroin Yellow Medicine Co. This company has been very successful from its
organization up to the present date, as shown in the following annual reports
for the last 4 years past:

For the year encﬁng Dgc. 31, 1880 Number of. members 57, policies 1n.
force 57, amount insured thereby $57,426.00.
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Received from members during the year, $192.65
Losses incurred and paid R. Ivenson and S. John-

athanson on stables; cause, prairie fire, , $23.00
All other expenses. _ 91.76
Balance on hand, 77.89

el coveeccnes emam—

$192.65 $192.65

Dee. 31, 1881. Members 74, policies 74, amount of insurance in force
$71,381.

Receipts for the year, $114.00
Balance in treasury from previous year, 77.89
Losses incurred and paid G. Torberg and’Knud

Kjorness 1 cow and 1 heifer; cause lightning, $41.00
All other expenditures, 58.47
Balance on hand, ' 98.29

$192.76 $192.76

Dec. 31, 1882. . Numbers of members 96, policies 96, total amount of insur.
ance $86,060. '

Received during the year, $217.25

Cash from previous year, 98.29 ‘
Losses incurred and paid, K. Thompson, one horse, $100.00
All other expenditures, 70.78
Balance in cash, _ 144.76

$815.5¢ $815.54

Annnual report, Dec. 31, 1883. Number of members 112, policies in force
112, amount of insurance in force $105,477. :

Receipts for the the year, $313.19
Balance from previous year, 144.76
Losses paid, S. Hognason and A. Lee, stables, $59.00
All other expenditures, | 63.90
Balance in treasury Jan. 1, 1884, 385.05

| $457.95 $457.95

In 1881 the money received for membership and 8 cents per 100 dollars in-
sured paid all loss and expense.

In 1882 the receipts for membership and 15 cents per 100 dollars settled all
loss and expense for that year.

In 1883 the money received from membership and 12 cents {per 100 dollars
settled all claims against the company for that year. - _

The 'present board of directors is as follows: E. K. Kjorness, president; Ole
L. Orsen, secrefary; L L. Kolhei, treasurer; Q. Simundson. S. Hognason, H.
B. Nilsen, Ole Johnson, directors.



TOWN OF CLIFTON.

Clifton is on the east side of the county, joining Redwood county, with Stan-
ley north, Amiret south and Lake Marshall west. It is town 111, range 40.
Its surface is all prairie with very litile standing or running water.  The out~
let to Lake Marshall.cuts the southwest corner, and is its only stream. On
section 28 and some adjoining territory a rather swampy lake called Goose
Lake is found, and constitutes the town's lake inventory. The prairie soil of
Clifton, however, is unsurpassed for fertility, and its meadows and grazing
lands are among the best in the county. While the town has no native tim-
ber, there are numerous thrity groves of cultivated forest [trees, some very
fine, but a tew years hence the monotony of prairie scenery will have disap-
peared 1n one of nature’s pleasantest landscapes, prairie and grove combined.
The lands of Clifton are almost free from waste pieces, and it will in time,
when its coming rich farms are opened and improved, become one ot Lyon
eounty's best agricultural townships.

The first settlers who located homes in Clifton came in1872. J. A. Dillman,
a native Nova Scotia, who lives on section 20, took the first claim in June 1872,
although he did not move his family there till the next May. Hecame from
Hennepin county, In 1872, also, settlement was made on section 6 by R. D.
Barnesand C. A. Cook, from Iowa, and G. P. Ladenburg, from Heunepin Co.,
on section 18. The next two or three years brought in several seftlers, and
the town was organized in 1876, the 100th birth year of the U.S. Like the
naming of a new child the christening of Clifton was arrived at through much
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discussion. The town first caught the name of Edenview, 2 name conceiyed
‘with June landscapes and an active imagination as a basis, but through the
more practical :1deas ot Christopher Dillman was changed to Clitton. This
name of course, means & cliff town, and is appropriate for this town because
there isn’t anything that the most vivid ideality could distort into a cliff within
twenty miles or so of it. The cliffs of Clifton are nota foot high, and raise
rutabagas and wheat in immense quantities.

The first.town meeting, Oct. 6, 1876, elected as the first town officers, A. J.
Waite, chairman; G. P. Ladenburg and Christopher Dillman, supervisors;
R. D. Barnes, clerk; J. A. Dillman, assessor; C. A. Cooke, treasurer; G. W.
Mossman J. Lynn, justices; H. J, Newhouse a.nd W. B. Franklin, constables.

Miss 1da Mead taught the first public school 1 the town in 1876. There are
now three organized school districts with school buildings on sections 8, 11 and
23.

The first public religious services in the town at w luch preaching was done
were conducted in 1875 by Rev. H, C. Simmons, a Congregational minister ot
Marshall, and a church society has since been organized there preaching be-
ing supp:ied from the church in Marshall. Services are still held in the school
house.

In 1883 Clifton had reported 2,205 acres under plow; 1,115 wheat, 605 oats,
308 corn, 116 barley, 18 potatoes, 11 beans, 23 flax.

The vote of the town in 1882 was 31.

The inhabitants of Clifton can be found as follows:

Section 2, ne C. Marks; se C. J. Spong; sw Wm. Marks.

Section 3, H. C. Meehl.

Section 4, se G. Metzelder; sw B. Snyder.

‘Section 5, ne C. Rock.

Section 6, se C. A. Cook; w} ne and e} nw R. D. Barnes; w} nw B. Grubk.

Section 8, nw H. J. Newhouse; nw P, L. Truax; se H. Mead, |

Section 10, nw A. Adler and C. M. Gary; sw D. C. Ackerman; ne F. H.
Fligge; se A. Mead.

Section 12, nw B. Hassinger; se W. Mossman; ne F. Rowley.

Section 14, se M. C. Humphrey: ne F. Bedbury.

Section 18, se G. P. Ladenburg; w} J. Lynn.

Section 19, se J. Flemming.

Section 20, s} J. A. Dillman; cepter } Christopher Dillmaa; n} aw Geo.
Dillman.

Section 22, nw G. W. thaw; sw D. A, Keys; se J. Pierard.

Eecfion 24, nw W. H. Dilly; sw (t. W. Selover.
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Section 26, ne J. Durkee; nw A. Minneseng and J. Freiheit.

‘Section 28, ne F. Hawkins; s} L. Nichols.
Section 30, sw J. 8. Brown; n} Seymour, Sabin & Co.
Section 32, nw F. Shake; ne E. C. Knieff.

Section 34, nw L. Nichols; sw J. C. Brown; se W. S. Rader.
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TOWN OF LAKE MARSHALL.

This township, in which is located the village of Marshall, the county seat,
is named from a lake which lies in the southeast part of the town.. Itis six
miles west of Redwood county and vwelve miles south ot Yellow Medicine, and
is town 111, range 41.

The town was the first organized town of the county, though its settlement
is ante-dated by that ot Lynd. The first settlement was made in 1869, W. H.
Langdon, now of Lynd, locating a eclaim on section 8 in June of that year,
C. H. Whitney and C. H. Upton located the same summer on section 4, the
former on the southeast quarter, and the latter on the northeast quarter, both
now embraced in the village incorporation. In the tfall of ’69 L. W. Langdon
and his son, E. B. Langdon, located in the town, on sections 18 and 8 re-
spectively, In 1870 the town gained several settlers, amdng whom were M.
D. Morse, Oren Drake, Mrs. U. S. Stone, G. M. Durst, C. T. and Charles Bel-
‘lingham, Josiah Clark and Geo. R. Welch. Of these first settlers Whitney,
Upton, Drake, Durst, Bellingham and Clark are still residents of the town.

March 8, 1872, a town meeting to organize and elect officers was held at the

house of C. H. Whitney and the following first officers of the town were elect-
ed: '

Oren Drake, chairman; €. T. Bellingham and Noble Cuyle, supervisors; C.
H, Whitney, clerk; S. M. Taylor, assessor; O. A. Drake, treasurer; W. H.
Langdon and C. H. Whitney, justices; C. H. Upton and O. A. Drake constables.

This was a boom year tor the town and county, the Winona & St. Peter rail-
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road being built and operated to Marshall in 1872, The town site ot Marshall
was laid out in August this year by a company of the W. & St. P. surveyors,
consisting of J. W. Blake, W. G. Ward, J. H. Jenkmns and J. H. Stewart, The
location chosen was in the central part ot section 4, and the town assumed vil-
lage proportions very rapidly, of which proper mention will be made in anoth-
er place :

The Redwood river, named by the Indians from the cedar trees found on its
banks near its junction with the Minnesota river, flows into the town from
Lynd on section 7 and cuts sections 8 and 4, flowing out in a northerly direc-
tion into Fairview. Groves of timber and scattering trees lie along the Red-
wood in most of i1ts very crooked passage through the town, and add very
much to the generally attractive appearance of its prairie surface. The inlet
to Lake Marshall, though a small stream, - turnishes running water generally
to the southern sections. | |

Lake Marshall, named after ex-Governor Ma.rsha.ll, is a beautitul little prairie
lake lying 1n an oval shape in sections 25, 26 and 36. 1t is about halfa mile wide
by probably a mile and a half long, and has high banks on buth shores, with
an occasional tree fo break the monotony and turnish shade for the pick-
erel and bullheads with which it abounds. The lake is not as deep as some of
the lakes in the county, but it furnishes an attractive picnic ground, and is the
almost constant resort of fishing and hunting parties, Sundays excepted, of
course. At the head and foot of the lake me adows of the finest wild grasses
in the west spread out for miles, making it a rich grazing field and supplying
‘hay in greater abundance than is needed at present. These meadows, with
the future growth of the country and better means of marketing, will become
the richest portions of the town. They are dry enough (o become tillable if
desired, and have soil that is inexhaustable by any probable cultivation, The
soil ot the whole town, though perhaps more varied than some of the other
towns, is of unsurpassed excellence, and will return large protits tor good cul-
tivation almost to a certainty. There are several large and very thrifty farms
in the town, that would be a credit to any county. “The acreage reported un-
der cultivation in 1883 was not, however, very large, being but 1835, of which
there were 750 in wheat. 579 in oats, 304 in corn, 98 in barley, 22 in potatoes,
60 in flax. There were also 120 acres of cultivated forest trees, and 600 rods
of the same on the highways.

The houses of settlers in the town outside of the village of Marshall are lo-
cated as follows:

Section 2, ne J. W. Pike; se H Hoyt; nw J. K. Johnson; sw Geo. Cook.

Section 8, sedJ. B. Drew; sw W. Hyde.

Section 5, se R. Spates.
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Sectlon 6, ne R. F. Webster; se and nw'Jas. Andrew; sw Geo. and B. Lmk

Section 7, part of Youmans farm,

Section 8, wi'J. Ward; e} nw H. Frcese e sw J. Anderson; ne N. Cuyle ;
se T. King.

Section 9, nw J. Scott. |

Section 10, nw J. W. Blake; ne J. S. Dewey; se S. Webster.

Section 11, n} T. Walker.

Section 12, nw W. Wirt; sw W. G. Hunter; ne C. H. Richardson.

Section 13, aw O. M. Faller.

Section 14, se A. Erickson; sw P. Quigley.

Section 16, e} John Berry.

Section 18, ne D. Minnick; se W. Cashman; nw Geo. Link; sw J. Smith.

Section 19, B. J. Heagle.

Section 20, nw M. Pettibone; sw C. T. and Chas. Bellingham; se Geo. Cook.

Section 22, nw Andrew Ham.
- Section 24, nw C. Skillings; s} C. M. and A. Templeton.

Section 26. nw and sw J. M. Burke, two houses.

Section 27, n} C. H. White.

Section 28, ne L. D. Lewis; rest of section M. C. Niles' stock and dair y
farm, two houses .

Section 30, nw Geo. Orr.

Section 32, n} J. Clark; s} nw F. S. W etherbee; sw E. Brotherton.

Section 34, n} John Middleton; se G. R. Watkins.

The first marriagein the town was that of Oren Drake and Mrs. U. S. Stone
on Sept, 4th. 1872, Rev. R. Wait officiating.

The first birth is said to have been a child of one of the Billings boys.

The first death was that of the Fox family who were caught in the terrible
blizzard of Jan, 8th, 1873. .

The family consisted ot Mr. and Mrs. Fox, a little girl five or six vears old
and a young man, a nephew. They held a claim in Lynd, it is said the one
Mr. Fezler now lives on, and had been to Redwood Falls on a visit,  On their
return they were overtaken by the storm on Thursday, and when further ef-
forts at traveling became useless they unhitched their oxen, letting them take
care ot themselves, and turning over the wagon box tried to fix up a shelter.
Such a shelter, however, was almost valueless in that kind of a storm, and
they were soon drifted into the snow: When the storm abated om Satur day,
they were found by Mr. Barnes near J. K. Johnson's and brought to Mar-
shall. The young man and the little girl were dead and Mr. Fox was so badly
frozen that he died on Monday. Mrs. Fox recovered. They were buried near
the gravel pit, east of Mr. Wakeman's,
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The firat school was taught by Walter Wakeman in the winterof 1872 and
’78 in a building used by W. M. Todd for a lumber office. The school had
about 20 pupils.

The first sermon was preached by Rev. R Wait in 1872 in a tent used week
days for a saloon.

The history of Lake Marshall being very nearly connected with that of the
the wllave of Marshall, a more detailed account of its early events will be
found in another chapter.



TOWN OF EIDSVOLD.

Eidsvold, town 113, range 43, is located in the northwest corner of the coun-
ty, joining Yellow. Medicine county on the north, Lincoln county ou the west
and the towns of Westerheim and Nordland on the east and south.

The first settlement is said to have bcen made by Nels Tonrgerson in June
1871. The same year Swend Peterson and Ole Esping took claims and set-
iled there. An organization wae effected in 1873, and the first election held
Sept. 20, electing the following officers:

H. T. Oakland, chairman; Nels Torgerson and A. Amundson, supervisors;
John Coleman, clerk; O. B. Ringham, - assessor, Swend Peterson, treasurer;
H. D. Frink, justice; O. H. Esping and G. Amundson, constables.

In 1878 Mr. Frink opened a store west of .the present village of Minneota.
He had been appointed postmaster of the postoffice of Nordland in 1872, and
confinued in that office till 1875, when it was transterred to N. W. L. Jager
and moved to the present site of Minneota on the southwest: quarter of section
25. Mr. Jager had opened a store 1n 1874 at the old site of Nordland and had
moved it to the new site in 1875, this being the first store there. - The second
store was started 1n Nordland in 1875 by Dr. T. D. Seals. Christian Lee ran a
blacksmith shop on section 26 tor two years-previous to this. In 1876 the
railroad company laid out the present village of Minneota, which, however,
went by the name of Nordiand till it was changed by act ot legislature in 1878
to its present name. '

Rev. J. Berg held the first religious services in Eidsvold in the section house
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at Nordland. The services were Lutheran. There are now two l\n orwegian
Lutheran and one Icelandic Lutheran organizations.

The first public school was taught by O. H. Dahl, a railroad section house
being used for school purposes till 1879 when a school puilding was put up at
Minneota.

The first marriage was that ot J. J. Wallen and Annie Olson, Oct. 24, 1874,

The first birth was made a good omen for the town in a pair of twin girls to
Swend Peterson and wife in 1871.

The death of a daughter of Ole Peterson in. 1872 was the first death.

In 1879 Bishop lreland mnade a purchase of the railroad company of a large
tract of land in Eidsvold and adjoining towns, and located a Catholic colony
there. A considerable portion of this first purchase was in Eidsiold, and the
population of the town was at once increased by an immigration ot English
and Irish Catholics, under spiritual charge of Father M .. Hunley the first
priest of the colony. These immigrants were, as “a rule, too unskilled in the
business of western farming to make a suddenly large suceess oi  this coloniza-
tion scheme and many of the first immigrants after a time left the colony for

other pursuits; but new and better cfforts were made by Rev Ilanley and
his successor, Rev. Louis Cornehis, and a class of more practical azricuiturists
were soon gathered into the colony from England, Ircland, Canada and Bel-
gium, and Rev. Cornelis built a church and parsonage at Minncota. the ouly
Catholic church in the county.

The colony 1s now divided into two branches wtth two priests. Father Lee at
Minneota and Father Devos at Ghent, some seven miles east of Mimneota, and
numbers about one hundred members who are fast bmommv thrift v and pros
perous farmers.

The Winona & St. Peter R. R. cuts through the town of Eidsvold diagonally:
from southeast to northwest, giving the town the advantage of a near market.

and trading pointin Minneota, and greatly enhanecing the valuation of the reak.
estate ot the town.

The two branches of the Yellow Medicine river flow thr ough the towm, ilie
south branch from south to north and the north branch from west to east,
with a branch from the south in the west part of the town. This makes Eids-
vold exceptionally well watered, and gives it rich meadows and valua'le graz'-
ing fields as well as unsurpassed farming lands. The grain crop ot Eidsveld
‘has almost always been a large yi1eld, and the town is cne of the most fertile
districts of the west. -

- The assessor’s report for 1883 gave for the town 1,812 acres in whea!, 556°iw
oats, 278 corn, 60 barley, 22 potatoes, 2 flax, and a total acreage under. culmtm
tion ot 2,735. ‘1t had also 65 acres of forest trees growing.
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The last assessed valtation of the town was 866,761, and its highest record-
éd vote, that of 1882, was 104. :

School distriet No. b5, brgamzed in 1882 has a good school house and an en-
rolled scholarship of 40, Sechool district No. 39 has the same enrolled scholar-
ship and is in the north east part of the town.

One of the curiositics of Eidsvold is a fossil trec tound on the notth bratch
of the Yellow Medicine river by Ole O. Svennes in Dec 1875. The larger
piece is now in the yard ot Samuel Hoviand in sectionl. - 1t is 25 inches in di-
ameter and over six feet long, showing part of the roots, knots &. This
piece has been named Dale Gudbrand, after an old Norwegian chict who
fought against St. Olof, the king who christianized Norway.

1n the center of section 2 stands an old land mark in a big cottonwood near-
Iy 90 feet high and visibie for 15 miles.

A ftine truss bridge spans the north branch of the Yellow Medicine on the
section line between sections 1 and 2. It is 146 feet long, built oy the town at
a cost of $600.

During the big flood of 1880 several very strange fish werc caught in the
Yellow Medicine, never scen there before. One is claimed to have been a
endfish. It was atresh one.

Houses ot residents are found as follows:

Suction 2, ne O. A. Svennes; nw K. Helgesen; sw’K. Fodnes.

Seetion 4, ne F. MeMahon; sw W. P. Ruggles and F. R. Adams.

Section 6, nw A. Congee; sw B, Vosburg.

Section 8, w} J. Abern; e} E. Hinkley.

Section 10, nw L. P. Johnson; ne K. Kmulsou. sw K. Fodues, se K. O.-Bak-

ken and Torger Stene.
* Section 12, n} Thor Rye and H. Bo'vden; se E. Knudson; sw Ole Esping.

Section 14. ne K. Syverson; se H. T. Oakland; nw K. Tvambek; sw Malone.

Section 18, se F~N. Welch; nw B. Agners..

Section 20, sw John McCormick.

Section 22, nw J. K. Kaas: ne J. Penmagton .md C. Hansen; Knud Rye and
H. Rye; sw B. Wallen, |

' Section 24, nw K. E. Kjornes; ne E. K. Kjornes; sw A. Annudson; se I. Ol-
sen and Dekier.

Section 26, ne (. Thompson; nw O. B. Ringham; sw H. H. Boe; se G.
Lhompson and J. Withams.

Section 28, n¢ W. Salmon; e} L. Andersoun; sw L. McDonald.

Section 30, nw Henry Carstens; sw A. Ratke and Wm. Mohr.

3 Section 34, nw E. O'Brien and Nels Tortrelson, se K. O. Dovre; sw Ole
Seste.



TOWN OF NORDLAND.

O G e

Nordland is situated on the west line of the county and six miles from the
korth line. The surface of the town is rolling prairie watered by the .south
branch of the Yellow Medicine river. which flows through the town, entering
at the southwest corner, and, after a very crooked passage, leaving it on the
north line near the center, This gives some very fine meadow lands, and
makes the town well adapted to stock raising and dairying which is being
largely entered into. The soil, like all the soil of Liyon county, is unsurpassed,
and there are many thrifty farms dotting the prairie.

The town was first settled by Frederick Holritz, who located on section - 10
in 1870. 1In 1873 the town was organized, an election being held at the house
of T. H. ¥lume March 10. The following were the first town othcers:

Ole O. Groff, chairman; Ole O. Rear and Nils Anderson, supervisors; Fred-
erick Holritz, clerk; T. O. Loftsgaarden, assessor; A. O. Strand, treasuver;

J. O. Fangen and Holritz, Justlces, Thrond Helverson and W K. Hovden, con-
stables.

The fi1st school was tanghtin 1874, districts 24 and 25 b(,mg organized tha§
year. Private houses are still used for school purposes.

The nearest market town of Nordland is ‘Minneota, though consnderable of
the trade. of the town goes to Marshall.

The. population of the town is entirely Scandinavian, no other nationality be-
ing found we think unless perhaps a few lcelanders. The even sections are

faixly well settled. Very'littlé settlement, has yet been made on the railroad
sections,
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On the farm of Albert Halverson in the south part of section 28 is said to be
the highest altitude in Lyon county. Itis said that from there one lcan see
néarly all over the county.

The residents of the town who have houses are located as follows:

Section 2, ne Halver Olson; nw J. B. Johnson. se Thos. Olson; sw-W. K.
Hovden. ,

Section 3, se Robt. Cultshaw.

Section 4, ne John Ohnn; nw Seven Jeramansen; sw John Jhoff; se S, Se-
wyertson and John Josephson,

Seection 6, n} E, C. Getske; se S. G. Dalen.

Section 8, n} S. Gilvertson; se Nels Nelson; sw Chris Johnson.

Section 10, nw Teeta Tolff; ne A. Strand; se Sever Tergland.

Section 12, nw H. Verpe; sw Ole Rear; ne Ole Groft; se Arny Larson.

Section 13, nw Ole Bjerska; s¢ N. T. Dahl.

Section 14, ne T. Flume; nw A. Larson; e Nels Myre; sw Ole Severson.

Section 18, ne Charles Anderson; se Lars Jerpbak. nw  Aslak Hang; sw Ole
Stear. _ . |

Section 20, sw Sam’l Hanson; ne’F. Holritz; se Ole Myrick. |

Section 22. ne K. Melbo; nw Ole Nordba; sw J. G. Géllumd; se G. 4 mund-
son. ' '

Section 24, nw T."J ohnson; sw G, Stenerson; se Ole Ladel; ne F. Rﬁmberg
-and Ole S. Kgelud.

Section 28, ne Nels Halverson; nw Andrew and Albert Halverson; sw Louis
-Leeland. |

Section 30, ne 8. Anderson; sw Trancy Tobias.

Section 82, nw M. Bradason; ne B. Johnson.

“Section 34, nw Ole Borsnes; 1. st se John Larson.



TOWN OF GRANDVIEW.

Grandview, town 112, range 42is located six miles from the] north and west
lines of the county. It is one of the best .prairie towns in the county, and is
being rapidly settled up. The Belgian branch of the Catholi¢ colony has ta-
ken a considerable portion of the town within the last two.years. and bids fair
to take more.

The first settler in Grandview was O. McQuestion, who located on section
34 in Aug. 1871. He did some breaking that summer and erected the first
house, 'a slab *dug out” covered with sods. This was the year before the
railroad reached Marshall and building material was scaree and dear.

In Aligust 1873 the lirst town meeting was held at the house of J. Thomas,
and there weve then elected the first officers, T. J. Barber, chairman; S. B.
Green and J. M. Coilins, supervisors; A, L. Bualdwin, clerk; Geo. Chamber
lain, assessor; J. M. FEnglish,  treasurer; Q. }'\'I(:Question an«l H. B. l.oomis,
justices; G, A, Wirt and C. Cotterell, constables,

'The first birth in the town was that of Lilly. o danghter ¢f O, McQuestion,
Dee. 16, 1871. :

The flrst death was that of a child of Joseph Chamberlain.

The first school was tanght in 1876 by Sarah Constant.  Tlie town now has
four school houses, ,

The first preaching was by Rev. W. 8, Williams, Methodist, who it is said
also preached the first sermon in Fairview in Seth :Johason's blacksmith shop.
This was in 1872, during whicly year there was quite an emizration to the
town. '
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The W. & St. P. railroad runs across this town somewhat diagonally toward
the northwest, giving & station on section 15 which was formerly named Grand-
view but was changed to Ghent by the Belgian colonists some two years ago.
It is seven or eight miles from Marshall, and, under the impulse given it by
the colonists is growing into a thrifty village. '

The history and present, status of the railroad stations and villages will be
treated seperately from the townships in another place.

Three Mile Creek runs through the town toward the north, and the bottom
lands along the creek are among the finest meadows in the county. The farm-
ing lands of Grandview are good enough for the most eritical and a large num-

ber of the farms are thrifty and handsome homes.

The assessor’s report for 1883 gave 1,022 acres improved, 629 wheat, 261
oats, 80 corn, 15 barley, 20 potatoes, 8 flax. The crops Lave been uniformly
as good as those of any section of the county. A canvas made by by Mr.
Vaugh this winter gives over 3,800 acres of improved land, about 500 cattle
and 225 horses. '

The town has no natural timber, but is reported as having 44 acres of culti-
vated forest trees, some of the groves being very thrifty and promising ones.

The last assessed valuation of Grandview was $65,725, which will show a
large increase in this spring’s asgessment, real estate not having been assessed
for two years.

The houses of residents are to be found as tollows:

Section 1, e} Victor LeBeau.

- Section 2, nw H. Chalmers; s} F. DeLand,
Section 3, ne J. Cavanagh.
Section 4, nw H. B. Loomis; se Theo Carron: sw C, Foulon and G. Verghote.
Section 5, se John Ford.

Section 6, ne M. Ellefson; se G. A. Aal; nw B. Jacobson; sw Ole Rotnum.

Section 8, w} nw A. Amundson; e}nw J. M. Vaughn; sw R. L. Greenslitt;
ne H. Maartens; se L. DeCock.

Section 9, sw David Van Hee.

Section 10, ne H. Princen.

Section 11, s} B. F. Jellison.

Section 12, ne F. Goodrich and E., A. DeLand, sw a Paradis; sw W, &,
Goodrich.

Section 14, ne A. Graham; nw Mrs. Collins.

Section 16, nw C. Messine.

Section 17, e} A. Van Hee; nw S. Van Hee.

Section 18, n} Christian Les; sw S. Ladel. |
-Section 20, ne d. Rigoier and J. Lambert; se A, A, Farmer; w} 'W. T. Maxon..
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Seetion 21, sw L. E. Bates; se Isaac Rignier.

Section 22, sw Chas. Cotterell and S. B. Green; se T. I. Barber; ne.J. Thom-
as and A. L. Baldwin.
Saction 24, sw J. M. English; ne G. Carpenter and E. Lord.
- Séetion 26, ne Frank Baldwin; nw S. .Coleman; sw J. Butson.
Section 27, nw Peter Schmitz; sw C. Schmitz. |
Section 22, ne F. Laythe; sw W. T. Maxon.
Section 30, John Sheldru; se John Nelson; nw A.J. Ladle; sw' 0. J. Ra-
num.
Section 32, sw J. Lambert; se M. Fuller; ne L. Story.
Section 33, w} A. Pemston.

Section 34, nw Wm. Goodell; ne J. G. Cook; s; 0. Mc Question



TOWN OF AMIRET.

Amiret, town 110, range 40, lies on the east line of the county and one mile
from the south line. |

The town was organized March 19, 1874, and named Madison. The elec-
tion held at that time at the store of Wm. Coburn gave as the first officers of
the town, Jas. Mitchell Jr., chairman; L. _Grover and D. Hanks, supervisors;
Wm. Coburn, clerk; J. H. Williams, assessor; S. S. Truax, treasurer; John
Taylor, justice; L. Mason, constable. ! '

The first permanent settlers were Charles and Lafayette Grover, who took
claims there in 1868, and James Mitcheli in 1869.

The W. & St. P. R. R. being built through the couuty in 1872, a store was
opened on section 32 by Wm. Coburn and a postoffice established with Coburn
as postmaster. The railroad company put 1n a switch here and the postoffice
and station was called Coburg. The Indiantrading station of Saratoga,
which had heen established by Lynd about 1857 or before that time and which
gave that name to the whole settlement on the Cottouwood, was further south,
claimed by some have been on section 1 in Custer.

In 1874 the railroad company moved their station about a mile northwest
and laid out the town of Amiret on railroad land in section 19. The name it
is said was given in honor of the wife of one of the railroad officials, The
name of the township was changed by legislative enactment to correspond
with that of the station. Mr. Coburn moved his store to the new site and
continued in business for two years.

In 1873 the Congregational gociety builta chureh on section 22, but the
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building was moved to the town of Custer in 1875. The first religious services
held in the town were conducted by Rev. J. Rees in 1872,

The first school was taught by Mrs. Warnick in a board shanty in the sum..
mer of 1878 on gection 31.

The first death was that of a daughter of L. Mason in 1872. The first birth
a daughter to Wm. Coburn and wife in 1863.  The first marriage was that of
J. A. Hunter of Marshall to Miss C. A. Mitchell, June 3, 1875.

Both branches of the Cottonwobd flow through Amiret, the north branch-
draining lake Marshall and Goose lake and flowing through the north sections
ofthe town, while the southern and larger branch flows from the southwest
corner to its junction with the northern branch near the . northeast corner
This msures for the town an ample water supply, furnishes gnod meadows, and’
on the south branch considerable timber. The earlier settlers naturally took
to the timber of the Big Cottonwood, and as settiement came into the town
rather slowly the interest in tree culture was not awakened till late in the
town’s historv, so that by the last assessor’s report there were only 27 acres of
cultivated forest trees in the town, The acreage of cultivated land by the
same report was, huwever, 8,199, of which 1,287 were in wheat, 870 in oats,‘.
428 in corn, 283 in barley, 57 in potatoes, 14 in beans, 57 in flax.

The soil of Amiret is good ard there is little waste land. -

The town has now three school houses and its educational mture&ts are not
neglected. .

The station of Amiret now supplies a market. a store being operated by Mr.
Kelly and a grain warehouse by VanDusen & Co. The railroad company has-
a good depot, and a commodious school house hus been built here. There is.
no good reason why at some future time there should not be a thrifty village
on the present site ot Amiret.

‘The settlers ot Amiret have houses located as tollows:

Section 2, ne F. S. Woodruff; se J. Fredenberg; nw E. Skyhawk.

Section 4, se J. Devens; sw O. P. Bali; nw J. W. Drew.

Section 6, ne H. C. Maydole and J. Shake; nw C. H. Dudrey.

Section 8, nw Jas. Struthers and H. C. Swift; sw John Curray.

Section 10, nw A. Nichols; ne V. U. Covay; sw W. Blackman and P. Devens.

Section 12, se J. Sherman.

Section 14, J. M. Tavlor; swJ. Frost; nw H. N. Raundall

Section 15, se S. F. Rowell.

Section 17, n} H. Curray.

Section 18, se C. R. Maydole; sw D. Tucker.

Section 50, nw J. W. Nichols; se B. Nichols ard Jas. T. Hernan.

Section 21, nw H. D. Shepherd; sw T. R, Mathews.
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Section 23, nw J. M. Mitchell.

. Section 26, ne J. York.

Section 28, ne, A. D. Lord; se G. Hardmg, nw H.: Drake.
Seetion 30, se James Mitchell.

‘Section 31, nw P. Ford; swC. S. Grover; se L. D. Grover.
Section 32, se W. Harrison.

Section 34, nw G. F. Harding; ne 0. W. Walsh.



TOWN OF SODUS.

———*

The township of Sodus, which is town 110, range 41, lies south of the town
of Lake Marshall, and is six miles trom the east and south hnes of the county.
Its surface is gently rolling praire, with very little waste land. The south
half has more natural meadows, especially along the Cottonwood river and its
branches. The grass of these meadows is very valuable, and that section of
the town makes a very desirable grazing field where either dairying or stock
ra.fsing can be made a profitable and easy business. Along these water courses.
there are between three and four hundred acres of these' meadow lands as good
as can be tound in the west. ‘The grass of these meadows, by the overiow of
the river every spring attains a growth of from four to six feet, and makes.
the most nutritious of hay for winter feed.

Though with very little native timber, the town now shows several fine
groves of forest trees that have been raised by the settlers. Among these
‘may be mentioned those of Mr. Curtis, the Messrs. Neill, Mr. Ford, Messts.
Clark, Mr. Estee and Chace. There are also some thrifty timber claims that
will furnish tuel in the near future to their owners and greatly add to the ap-
pearance ot the town. There are in the town 112 acres of cultivated forest
trees, and 2,314 reds set on highways.

" There were reported in last assessor’s report, 3,140 acres of cultivated land,
of which 1,565 were wheat, 867 oats, 432 corn, 137 barley, 82 potatoes, 84 flax

The farmers of Sodus are of late paying more attention tb_good stock, and
are consequently improving in finances accordingly. There are several pros-
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perous and very good farmers in the town who are demonstrating that agrie
-culture in Lyon county can be made a success. '

The public spiritedness of the town of Sodus is shown in their highways, onr
whizh since the organization of the town, seven years ago, they have spent in
labor and lumber for bridges about three thousand dollars.

‘The town has, also, four good frame school houses, the one in district No. 5
.eosting ahout £900, the others about $600 each.  School houses are located on
sections 3,10, 20 and 32. L

The town is well situated n relation to railroad markets, Marshall being
five miles north, Balaton tour miles somh, Amiret one mile east; and there 1s
a coming prospect of ancther station near by on the west when the Duluth
road is completed thiraugh the county.

The first scttler in Sodus is sail to have been Henry Cuyle, who came in the
spring of 1871. From that time the town settled up rapidly, and i 1876 the
town was organized and named Martin, bu$ soon changed to Sodus. "The first
town meeting was held Oct. 27, 1876, and the tollowing first town officers
were elected: E. Hall, ckairman; C. Fisher and D. Warn, supervisors; W. H.
-Chaffee, clerk, G. Sykes, treasurer: N. - Warn and J. H. Clark, justices; O.
Pangburn and W. G- Williams, constables. |

Miss Francis Mason taught the first schoolin 1877, a dwelling house having'
to be used in the absence of school houses. )

The first death was that of Tollet Olson in Sept. 1873. The funeral sermon
by Kev. Joseph Rees was the first public religious service in the towa it is said.

Houses ot settlers are located as follows:

Seetion 2, se M. Steele; nw Wm., Berry and ). McCudden; se J, Richie.

Seection '4, ne C. Fisher: se W. Chalfee; nw O. Pangburn; sw John Clark.

Section 5. Mr. Maxson.

Section 6. ne . Barnes: se (. Caley; na Gray; sw N. Minnie, T Hicks.

Section 8, nw E. Clark; ne D. Clark; sw A. R. Johnson; se T. F. Watson.

Section 14, sw Ilenry Estee.

Seetion 18, xe C. Marsh and D. Shilliam: sw W. L. Thurston.

Feetion 149, se Hugh Neill.

Section 22, sw N. Warn: nw Jf. Taylor.

Section 24 ne D Warn, nw Wm. Hull and A. . Chace; sw J. Scott.

Seetion 20, =w 4. Ford,

Section 26, ne G, Cook; se A, Wienkie; nw C. Lorenze; sw . Lorenze.

Seetion 23, ue, Jf. N, Lawshe; se W. G. Williams,

Section 30, ne Robt. Neill; se W, Neill; nw Robt. Marshall; sw H. Ford.
Secetion 32, nw A. Anderson; ne Wm. Shequin; se A. C, Forbes.
Seenon 34, nw T. Edwards; sw John and Wm. Griffiths; se N Davis.



TOWN OF LYONS.

— et Ga——

Lyons, which is town 110, range 42, lies south of ‘Lynd, and is six miles
from the west and south: lines of the county., The east and south poiﬁons of
the town are open prairie countrv with the usual rich soil and meadow lands
of the county generally. The northwest corner of Lyons is cut by the Red-
wood river, giving it some timber groves and also some rough land It1s
probable, as stated in. the article on Lynd that the first white men in the
county ]ocated in Lyons. The" remains of an old log house, supposed. to have
been Lle‘s trading post was found by the settlers in 1867 on section 5 of
Lyons. = The station was afterward moved to Lynd, however, if this theory i3
correet, probably after a burn out. |

The first permanent settler in the town was C. E. Goodell, who located on
section 5 in 1867. He wasin the woods as a chopper hefore this time ™2, 4 scheme
having been hatehed to cut logs there and float them to Redwood Falls during
high water.  ILiis claimed by some that he was the first man ia the co,mty af-
terthe Indian trading posts of the period before the Indiun massacre. | Later
in the spring o 1868 E. K. Taylor settled in the towa. Soon after C. Hildreth,
W. 8. Adams and . L. Pierce settled in the town.

An oraan./'ttlon was Lﬂ%u,d in 1873, the lirst election bt,mo' held Ap rll Lst.
The first town officers were Gordon Watson, chairman; C. L. VanFleet zmd J.
C. Buell, supervisors; Henry Mussler, clerk; Chas. Hildredih, assessor; C.
Wright, treasurer; J. W. Hoagland and E. Lamb, justices, C. E. Goodetl and
A. Crosby, constables.
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A school was opened the same year, Florence Downie being teacher. There
are now three school houses in thé town.

Rev. R. Wait, Presbyterian, conducted the first religious services there in
1870. A society was formed and a church built on section 14 in 1878. ‘The
same year the P. O. of Hildredthsburg was established at the house of Chas.
Hildreth, who was P, M. till the discontinuance of the office in 1878, Hil-
dreth’s house having been burned by praine fire. The postoffice of Leo was
established in July 1880 and located at Mr. Millard’s on section 14. Mrs.
Millard was appointed P. M., which posilion she still holds.

The houses ot settlers m Lyons are located as tollows:

Section 5, ne B..F. Bates; seC. V. and J. J. Hicks; nw Gordon Watson,

Section 4, ne W. C. Adams and H. L. Pierce; nw C. E. Rice.

Section 6, ne Mrs. Day; se D. Leary; sw R. Beasley.

Section 10, se J. Fifield; ne M. G. Fifield.

Section 11, se F. R. Lindsey. |

Section 12, nw C. E. Rice; sw E. B. Downie; ne F. C. Hicksand T. S.
Downie¢; se M. M. Cartis. |

Section 14, ne C. E. Goodell; nw J. M. Millard; sw R. Wait; se C. S. Riley.

Section 18, ne D. N. Fellon. '

- Section 20, sw R. Roberts; se A. Dann; ne I. N. Harvey.

Section 22, nw.R. D. Soper; sw D. Soper; se J. W. and J. F. Hoagland.

Section 23, sw Jas. Murison; ne J. Ingram.

Section 24, ne G. H. Thurston.
~ Section 26, se J. Burns; sw W. Riddell; nw Robt. Riddell.

Section 28, ne S. W. Galbraith; se L. Jones; nw C. E. Dresser and C: C.
Wagner.

‘Section 30, ne D. T, Fellon, se J. VanSehoick; nw L. P. Knapp

Section 82, sw W. Carlaw; se C. L. VanFleet.

Section 34, nw C. E. Rice; ne T. Graham; se L. Mitzner; sw E. Jones.

Sectton 35, nw E. Schmitz; ne J. Mitzner; sw Teufel.

In 1883 there were according to the assessor’s returns 2.118 acres of cultiva-
‘ted land, 824 wheat, 676 oats, 863 corn, 167 barley, 21 potatoes, 43 flax.
There were also 43 azres of cultivated forest trees.

-Rush lake, near the central part of the town, is well known to the hunters
~of water fowl, but is not a very attractive lake otherwise.

The settlers of Liyons are mostly Americans, and are among the best and
thritiest ot Lyon county’s population. ‘There are several model farms, and

the future of the town is that of a rich aﬁfmultura.l and dairy district. The
Dulugh; North Shere and SouthWestern R. mil undonbtelgly run through
the town next year.



TOWN OF LYND.

Lynd lies west of the town of Lake Marshall and is town 111, range 42.

'The history of Lynd is ancient history in its relation to Lyon county, this
town being the site of the county’s earliest settlement.

There was a trading: station for the Indian trade established here by James
W. Lynd probably as early as 1855 or ’57. - His store was located, it is said,
on the northeast . quarter of section 33. This statement is contradicted by
some who claim that it was on the southeast quarter of section 5 in Lyons. Im
the latter place the early seftlers found the remainsof a building that had
been burned, and in the spring ot 1830.Mr. Goodell in plowing hws garden half
a mile north of this spot plowed up a tub full of tools, consisting of handsaws,
chisels, an auger. hoes, a hand axe, a lat iron, a tea cup and saucer. The
tub was wholly rotted, leaying only the impression, and the tools were nearly
de'stroyéd by use. The Indians, it is said, point outsection five of Lyons as
the first tra.ding post. On section 33 the first seftlers found a log building still
standing, which L. Tickner used as a residence for a short time. It was later
used as n _school house, then as a store by G. W. Whitney, It is quite probaﬁle
that Lynd’s post may have been moved to this pomt from section 5 in. Lyons
after a burn out, er foruther reasons.

The first permanent settlement in Lynd was in June 1867, when A. W. Muz-
y. James Cummings and E. B. Langdon took claims on section 32 and 3.
In September and October of the same year, Mrs. C. F. Wright and son, L.
Langdon and family, Luman Tickner, wife and step-daughter (Miss E. B.
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Taylor, now Mrs. G. A. Wirt,) M. V. Davidson and family and D. M. and E.
E. Taylor made homes in Lynd. Some half-breeds had taken claimsin the
town before this time, and two of them, ‘Thomas Robinson and Jobun Mooers,
held claims respectively on sections 27 and 34, when thc settlers above named
arrived. They =old out to R. Holland and A. Ransom in 1868 and moved to
Lincoln county. In 1868, James, A. R. and Geo. Cummings, L. 5. Kiel, L.
and Geo. Marceyes, A. D). Morgan, ‘J. Rouse and John Clark settled in the
town. -

Mr. and Mrs. A. Ransom became the parents of a daughter in November ot
1868, which was the first white girl born in the county. The first boy born
in Lynd was Harry L. Cummings, son of Geo. E. Cammings, 1n 1869.

The first death was that of Mrs. Bowers, a daughter of Mr. Muzzy, April 20,
1868. She died of consumption one week after arriving in Lynd..

The first relizions meeting was a class meeting led by A. W. Muzzy in the
winter of 1867 and 1868 at L. Tickner,s. A Methodist church was organized
by Rev. C. F. Wright at L. Tickner’s in the fall of 1868. - The next year a un
ion Sunday school was organmized at the same place with a library ol about
135 books, 100 of 'which were donated by the M. E. Sunday school of Toulon,
I11., the rest by a M. E, book house in Chicago. LK. Lamb was superintendent.

In the fall of 1869 the Presbyterians organized a society, meetings, also being
held at L. Tickner's by Revs. Carrand Lyon. The Methodists of Lynd built
the first church in the county in 1871 on land owuned by M. V, Davidson. It
was made of logs with floor and root of native soil. Another church was
partly built in Upper Lynd, and used one summer when it was moved to Low-
er Lynd for a residence. .

Lydia Cummings taught the first school in 1869, being paid by subseription.
The school was taught in the old log building used in former years for an Indi-
an trading post. _

A postoflice was established at Upper Lynd in June 1868 with D. M. Taylor
P. M. It was held by him over four years. He also kept a grocery store the
first part of his term.

L. Tickner opened a hotel at Lynd in 1868. The travel through Lynd at this
time cou'dn’t have been very large or regular. Bands of Flandreau Indians
camped Yn the woods occasionally and a few travelers trom Redwood Falls
now and then stopped there as immigrants or on their way to settlements be-
yond. Between Lynd and Redwood Falls there was but one house. Lumber
used was hauled 50 miles, generally from logs hauled the same distance to mill.
Provisions not raised at home had to be brought from St. Peter or New Ulm.

The first regular mail carried to Lynd from Redwood Falls and the first in
the county, probably, was by C. Hildreth. The contract was soon after let
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to Wm. Jackson; who was the first white child born in St. Paul. James Cum-
mings and J. Rouse built a saw mill at Upper Lynd in 1868. 1t was changed
to a grist mill about 1872 by Smith, Ellis & Rouse, This 1s now known as the
Camden mill, and is owned by V. M. Smith. It hast hree runs of stone. H.R
Marcyes also built a three run mill on section 23.. Itis now the property of
B. F, Link, Chas. Hildreth commenced the building of a mill on section 17
about 1872. A substantial dam was made and for good reasons,'probably, the
scheme was then abandoned.

The village of Lynd was laid out by Mr. Muzzy on the south side of the Red-
wood river on‘section 33. In 1871 he sold out to W. T. Elhs who put up sey-
eral buildings.

Lower Lynd was laid out in 1871 by A. R. Cummings and A. D. Morgan. A
hotel was built and run there by Morgan and Kiel, and the former started =
store theve. Ellis moved his business there from Upper Lynd, and the P. O.
was also moved there. About 1874 the P. O. at Camden was established with
Elisas P. ML

The older citizens of the county will remember Elis as a character.  Gov-
cerned mostly by impulse he was always ready to preach a sermon, run horses
for the whiskey, conduct a Sunday school or beuat lns best friznd in a trad..

Smeé leavibg here he became the moving actor 1n a churci row to such an
cxtent as to get his portrait in the Police News.  While  here hg was an ener-
gotie, fervid effervescent citizen who did eonsiderable to build up the
ciiurceh and secular interests of Liynd, and develon its Iatent peossaibiiiiies. e
cpened 2 store at Lynd and bought goods {or it suflicient to stoek several suck
scttlements.  His goods had to lu brougsit by team drom New Ula, and were
caught in & heavy vain storm on the way. 1t is sald the dred anples swelled
so that all the other gt‘) ds ia that load wepe qhnv”‘] overaoard, and his lead of
codtish, beught at ton rates, proba bly on time, had to be svread over the hibls
of Lynd to dry Uil the air of that settlement, it is claimed, reackied the Flua-
drean fudians and seventy busks went on the war path thinking they smeliud.
the camp of another tribe,

* The irst marruige in the town was that of W. H. Lan; 2lon and Zilpha Cum-
niings in 1363, Rev. C. I, Wright ofiiciating.

The first horses in the county were owned by E. B. Langdon, first males sy
M. V. Davidson, first chickens and turkeys by L. W. Langdon, first bogs by L.
Tickner, first dog by J. Cummings. L. Tickner plowed the first grouri tor
crup in spring of 1863, The first wheat ruised was by A, R, Cummings i 1869

Yourth of July was first celebrated at Ly nd in 1368, and a merry celebration
it was. '

There are now two postoflizes in Lynd, one at Camden with J. Rouse, P. M.‘.



82 LYON COUNTY.

the other at what was formerly known as Lower Lynd, with L. S.- Kiel, P M.
Both Upper and Lower Lynd were for a time the county seat.

The Redwood river flows through Lynd, and a considerable body ot timber
is found along its banks, though the fuel demands of hard winters have made
heavy inroads on it, and small quantities are now being marketed. Three
‘Mhle Creek cuts the northwest corner of the town, and small branches of the
Redwood make the water supply of the town ample. The ¥prairie portions of
ibe town are excellent soil and the agricultural status ot Lynd is fully up to
the standard.

The town ot Lynd was organized Sept. 4, 1872, but no election was had. The
‘eounty board appointed as its first odicer J. Rouse, chairman; A! K. Cum-
mwmgs and J. Stark, supervisors; N. Davis, clerk; G. E. Cummings, treasurer.

At the special election in aid ot the Duluth railroad, Feb. 23, 1883, Lynd
cast 72 votes, all in faver of bonding the county.

In 1883 it had 3,823 acres under éultivation, of which 1,642 were wheat, 895
oats, 650 corn, 210 barley, 41 potatoes, 18 beans, 246 flax.

Its last assessed valuation was $103,997.

Its population is mostly Americans and intelligent, thrifty and desirable 'cit-

There are five school houses in the town, and church services are Leld at
Lynd and Camden

The houses of the present settlers are located as follows:

Section 1, Youmania tarm.

“Section 2, n} J. Goodwin; se P. B. Fezler; sw C. and P. C. Farnham.

:Section 3, s J. Peterson, '
_ Section 4, se J. Myers.

‘Beection 6, ne R. Spates; sw F. Peterson.

Section 8, nw W. Williams; ne Jas. Lockey; sw A. P, Wells.

Seetion 9, nw C. S. Foster; sw A. and F. Mellentine.

Section 10, nw C. Morton; sw J. Anderson.

Section 11, n} Larribee & Sons; sw Wm. Acheson; se Otto Anderson; ne
Chas. Pearson.

Seetion 12, nw O. A. Hawes; sw Co. poor tarm;ne W. S. Eastman; se I. V.,
Eastman,

Seetion 13, nw, A. Nelson.

Seetion 14, ne C. Acheson and C. Nelson; se A. Nelson; sw Orla Nash and
%. Wonderleigh; nw P. Mullany,

Section 18, ne H. Rolph; se Philip Sayder; aw A. C. Tucker; sw H. Rath-
mell. '
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Section 20, nw H. Tucker; sw G. A. Wonderleigh; ne L. E. Fellows and.
Alex Burr; se W. and B. Sykes.

Section 22, ne Jas. Cummings.

Section 23, sw L. Marcyes; ne Geo. Link and Link's mill.

Section 24, nw B. F. Lmli; sw A. L. Randall; ne B. Heath; se Angel.
Section 25, nw C. E. Rice.

Section 26, ne L. Gilman; sw Z. O. Titus and B. Smith.

Section 27, ne W, L. Watson; nw C. E. Rice, L. S. Kiel and Lynd P. O.;
sw Rioe and S. VanAlstine.

Section 28, ne A. R. Cummings; seD. C. Pierce; nw J. Dryden.
Section 29, ne C. M. Damuth.

Section 30, ne O. Gregg; nw O. C. Gregg; se H. G. Ward; swL. A. Gregs.

Section 32, ne C. Shilliam and W. H. Langdon; sw V. M. Smith; se Camden
mill, J. Rouse. Gregg’s store and Camden P. O.

Section 34, sw Mrs. Pierce, .



TOWN OF ISLAND LAKE.

Town 111, range 43, was organized in 1878, the first election being held in
‘March 1879, electing Robt. Gardner, chairman; L. Grow and Geo. George, su-
-pervisors; J. R. King, clerk and assessor; D. A. Kennedy, treasurer; J. H.
Sykes, constable. :

The town takes its name from a lake in the south part of'the town.  The 1s-
land in Island Lake has an area of two and a half or three miles, and is cover-
ed with a substantial growth of trees. The lake, covering probably over 200
-aeres, has no outles except in high water, when it runs into Three Mile Creek.

It is fed by springs. Mr. J. R. King, living near the lake, has a fine spring
of soft water. The shores of the lake are dry. There are not many fish in the
Iske, but efforts have been made by Mr. King and others to stock it with pike
and other fish, and before many years this defect will undoubtedly be reme-
tdied.

Goose lake, a short distance west, abounds in fish. It covers about 160
acres, has high rocky banks, and is an attractive lake.

North of the lakes Three Mile Creek crosses the town: from west to east. On
the creek in section 24 there is a grove of natural timber, consisting of four or
five acres. A branch of the Yellow Medicine runs across the northwest cor-
mer of the town, and has some timber on its banks,

The surface of the town is not as level as that ot some ofits sister towns, a
BarTOW range of the couteaus, gravel and stone hills, crossing the town trom
southeast to norchwest. This coutean section interferes somewhat with the
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agricultural value of the town, but the valleys of the couteaus have been found
to make the best grazing district in the county. The washings from the Thills
probably enrich them. At leastthe growth of grass is remarkably large and
very nutritious. The rolling character of the pasture is said to make health-
ier stock than on level fields.

A glacial period or a drift from some other cause hus deposited along these
couteaus boulders and small ledges of lime rock, The latter is often fourd in
large pieces, apparently dropped from some overhanging vehicle, sometimes
standing on edge. Mr. King ran a lime kiln 1or some years there on this sup
ply, and abandoned it on account of cost of fuel.

The soil outside the couteaus is as good as tha.t. of any other part of the
county, and produces large crops.

The first settlement of the town was made by Rev. Williams on section 24,
about the year 1870. In 1871 ‘Lafayette Grow and Mr, Fort settled on the
Yellow Medicine, and in 1872 John R. King settled on section 34, and kept the
half way house between Marshall and Marshfield. For some years after the
town did not settle very fast, but it is now fairly settled up with vigorous and
thrifty farmers. Nearly every farmer has planted a grove of timber, which
now begins to afford protection in winter, and greatly improves the summer
landscape.

The first marriage of parties in the town was J. R. King, Dec. 24, 1878
to Elizabeth Milner.

The first child born was Ethel Hodgkius.

The first school was taught by Ada Kennedy in 1879,

First rehigious services at house of J. R. King by a Mr. Dewey from Chicago.

The reported acreage cultivated in 1883 was 1,601, 887 wheat, 370 oats, 1i3
corn, 139 barley, 20 potatoes, 10 beans. There were 59 acres of forest trees
and 750 rods set on highways.

39 votes were cast in Island Lake at the special election, Feb. 23, 1888, to
bond the county for §40,0C0 in aid of the Duluth, North Shore and South-
western railroad, which proposes to run through the county from Shelburne

to Lucas. ‘All were for bonding.
The last assessed yvaluation was $30,396.
The houses of settlers are situated as follows:
Section 2, ne Aug. Meehl, nw John Olson; se Peter Jacobson; sw Ole Fer-

guson.
Section 3. se John Wiilson.
Section 4, ne Peter Ferguson; se K. Ferguson; nw H. Oleson; sw G. Rue.
Section 6, ne B. Knutson; se E. Tibbetts and L. Grow; sw A. R. Snow.
Section 8, n} C. F. Tibbetts, T. Jacobson, M. W. Roberts; sw H. Nelson,
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Section 10, nw M. Ferguson; sw H. Ferguson; se Jacob Willson.

Section 12. n} J. Paulson; se Mary Cornish, E. Rolph; sw J. P. Christian-
son. ' ' '

Section 13, se Geo. Boston.

Section 14, ne R. Phillips; nw John Lanning; se R W. Phillips; sw Homel"
Sparks.

Section 18, e} C. Willman; nw M. McDonald.

Section 20, nw John Albright; ne O. Morns.

Section 22, sw C. Bohlman and John Dyke; se W. VanBuren; ne Paul Po-
lasky.

Séction 24, nw C. Pochart; ne E. Barnes; se Geo. George.

Section 26, ne J. Peterson; nw T. H. Russell and D. W. Kennedy; sw D. A.
Kennedy.

Sectior: 28, e} Robt. Gardner.

Section 30, sw S. Freese.

Section 32, uw John Foulds; se A. Pochart,

Section 84, nw J, C. Beach; ne C. J. Falk; se J. R. King.
There are school houses in section 4 and section 34.



TOWN OF COON CREEK.

The town of Coon Creek lies or ,the west line of the county and six miles
from the south line. It is towrz 110, range 43.

The town was organized in '1882. The name of Garfield was first proposed,
but as the state already had a town of that name it was changed to Stowe.
This name not being satisfaetory, was again changed in 1878 to Coon Creek
a name that is as appropria‘ie as Walrus Island would be for the equator, If
there was ever-a coon in ‘the town it must have come with the south wind.
The name, however, has ane merit, individualty.  There 18 no other town of
that name in this latitud-,, '

There is &' creek ‘eglled Coon Creek Tising on section 6 which runsin a
southeasterly couzse, striking the east line of the town on section 24. It emp-
ties into the “xedwood river. This creek has some timber on its banks near its
junction "with the Redwood.

The, targe quantity of school and university land in the town has been a bar
to rapid settlement.. The greater part of the improvement has been made
within the last year or two.

Wood Lake, given as lake Marguerite on some maps, lies in the north part
of the town and is a beautiful little lake fringed with timber. The drainage
of the town is into the Redwood river, which flows across the southeast corner
and near the east line after leaving it. There is sume timber along the river,
and wood has been sold in Marshall from Coon Creek, but the supply 1s limi-
ted and not sufficient for the future demands ot the town. Last year's asses-
sor’sreport gave 17 acres of cultivated forest trees and 250 rods on highways,
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The town was first settled by D. S. Burt who took land on section 24, in May
1870. J. R. Burgett came in June 1871, locating on section 4 on the bank of
Wood Lake. H.H. Hodgkins and F. T. Burt came in about the same time.
Very little settlement - was made in the town for a year or two after.

The first sermon. Was.-.preachod by Rev. R. Wait in 1875.

The first mfunagd 'was that of Thos. Milner and Ella Knapp, Nov. 28, 1877.

The first birth wat:WLIIla.m, a son of Samuel Starrett, born at the house of
Mr. Burt in 1870,

The first death’ mm\that of a babe of Mr. and Mrs. Burt, November 1876.

vy portnon of't town is cut by the coteau range, making some rough and
waste’ la»,nd i ‘are, however, fine farming and dairy lands ia the town,
and severai tnd WX.Jgrws have been opened by an enterprising class of settlers. .

Houses ot residents™ g found as follows:

Section 2, se F. Mungersons sw B. ¥, Bement and Nels Anderson; nw C. A.
Johnson,

Section 3, W. M. Rice.

Section 4, se F. Porter,

Section 6, ne Siemer; uw P. Senerty; sw . Cupp.

Section 8, ne M. Milner; se G. O. Rask.

Section 9, se W. W. Herrick.

Section 10, nw F. Willard.

Section 11, se A. Johnson.

Section 12, sw Wm. McCarty.

Section 14, nw John Cleland.

Section 18, se L, Larson; sw John Ji)"ﬁﬁfﬁf)_,;;.

section 29, sw 'L Joy; se A, Joy; na Wa. ’icxn 01,

Section 22, sw J, Luiler; se L, ]1 Wdeethy ne WL LI Todgkins.

Section 24, nw D. 8. Burt; se 7. Ihda,

Section 29, s} . Taylor.

Seetion 30, ol J. JJ. 3eDonald.




TOWN OF CUSTER.

——

Custer lies on the south line of the county and six miles from the east line,
and is'town 109, range 41.

The Cottonwood river flows across the north end ot the town irom west to
cast, and had some years ago considerable timber along its banks.  This faet,
which is an attraction m all new pramvie eountries, brought white traders to
this section before the Indian niassacre of 1862, A German some time before
this opened an Indian trading station on the Cotionwood river it is said on
section 1. It was called Saratega.  Trouble with a halt breed by the name of
J 0<ep‘ Campbell led to the murder of the tradoer by Campbell who was after-
ward hung by a mob at Mankato for the murder of the Jewett family.

No settiement was made after this il 1863, when H. C. M: wsters, John
Avery, Horace Randall and G. 5. Robinson took claiins in the town.  The
tewn was organizad in 1876, the fivst town meetingz, Oct. 1ith of that year, be-
ing held at the school honse ou section 2. The first twcket elected was L. D.
Lewis, chairmaun; W, H. Hughes and Wi, Shaud, 5.1.11»01"\'isor:=; B.¥. Thomas
clerk and treasurer. The other town oftizes were not filled till the succeeding
spring election.

Jane Mitchell taught the first schoolin a log house on section 2 in the win-
ter of 1870. The district then combined the present towns of Custer, Monroe,
Amiret and Sodus.  Custer now has three school districts and comfortable
school buildings.

Rav. Riley, a Muthodist preach er, conducted the first religious service in th s
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town in 1870. The next year a Presbyterian society of 16 members was or-
ganized under Rev. Joseph Rees. A church was built in 1873, but was burned
in 1878. The Congregational society now have a church on section 12, Rev.
Peregerine being pastor.

A considerable portion of the population of Cuater is of Welch extraction
and the census of the town would probably give about 240 people, the spring
-election of this year showing a poll of 48 votes,

In the south part of the town are two lakes, Lake of the Hills and Long lake.

Along the Cottonwood are some fine groves of natural timber, though large
tracts have been cut off for fuel purposes. There are many pleasant home-
steads and rich thrifty farms in the town. The assessor’s report ot 1883 gave
3,142 acres improved, 1,456 of which were wheat, 917 oats, 269 corn, 260 bar-
ley, 35 potatoes, 6 beans, 90 flax. The town also had at that time 87 acres of
.cultavated forest trees. _

‘The Dakota Central runs through the south part of the town, but, as yet,
has no station in lhe town. The nearest markets are, Tracy, four miles east;
Balaton, 2} miles west; Amiret, 3 miles north; Marshall, 10 nnles north.

Resident's houses are located as follows.

Sedtion 1, se G. S. Robinson.
Section 2, ne C. M Goodrich and David Mongan se E. H. Cutts; sw S.

DeLong.
Section 4, ne B. F. Thomas; se B. B. Thomas; nw Layfayette Alden; sw A.

Booth. _
Section 8, ne C. Anderson.
Section 10, ne John Avery; se Margaret Jones; w} W. W, Harrison.
Section 12, nw Jas Morgan; sw J. Rees and R. H. Hughes; e D. C. Griffiths.

Section 13, s J. H. Cutler.
Section 14, se W. H. Hughes, sw Wm. Shand; nw J. H. Hughes,
Section 18, ne P. Fedde and _W. W. Gifford; se D. D. Jones; sw Jas. Elliott:

nw Geo. 1. Glotfelter.
Section 20, nw C. Whitmus and J. W. Whitmus; ne C. Whitmus.
Section 22, nw J. Steele; ne Daniel Willford; sw K. K. Olson; se L. Soward

and A. G. Bumford.
Section 34, nw T. L. Harns; sw J. L. Harrls, ne H. H. Williams; se S.

Evans.
Section 25, ne L. B. Woolfolk.
Section 26, ne R. Owens and R. R. Owens; se E. H. Cutts; sw J. Owens.
Section 28, ne J. P. Jones; nw M. Nelson; sw John Swenson,
Section 30, ne Wm. Parks; wj C. W. Candee.
Section 32, nw S. Soward.
Section 34, ne H. Peterson; nw Hans Jacobson se; C. Helleson; sw T. Nel-

aen.



TOWN OF ROCK LAKE.

The township of Rock Lake, which is town 109, range 42, lies on the south
line of the county and one mile from the west hme. It derives its name irom.
a lake which lies in the northwest corner of the town, the name of which was
given it by the early settlers on account of the character of its banks which in
some places are nearly walled up with boulders. It is a beautiful little lake
with some timber on its shores, deep water and stocked with fish It isa favor<
ite picnic ground and one of the attractions of the town.

The town was first settled in the spring of 1871 by the McNabbs from Cana-
da, who located on section-14 on the north shore of luke Yankton. This lake
is smaller than Rock Lake and not so deep, but is an attractive body ot pure
water, and turnishes much pleasure to the peopie of ; Balaton which is built on.
its south shore. In 1872 W. and E. Hamm, G. W. Linderman, C. QOsborn, J..
W. Lester, J. A. Van Fleet, J. T. Crouch, A. Town, Mr. McKay and Miss .Lina..-
Bishop were residents of the town. Other early settlers were W. Livingston,.
L. Town, G. A. Glotfelter, E. R. Weeks, L. Nichols, J. Abernethy, O. E. Per-
sons and H. L. Gifford.

The town was organized in Oct. 1876, and the following officers elected:

W. Livingston, chairman; W. Hamm and Jas. Abernethy, supervisors; A.
N. Daniels, clerk; G. W. Linderman, treasurer; J. A. Van Fleet and Geo. A.
Glotfelter, justices; E. R. Weeks and A. McNabb, constables. This election
was held at the school house on the land owned by J. Abernethy, now in_school
district No. 60.
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The first marriage occurred in Oct. 1879, C. M. Eichler and Cora Hamm.
‘The ceremony was performed by justice O. .E. Persons.

The first death was that of Geo. A. Glotfelter, June 21, 1878.

The first birth that of a son 1o one the McNabbs.

There have been since the town was organized 52 births and 16 deaths.

Rock Lake postoffice was established in 1874, R. Weeks, postmaster. The
office was kept at Weeks’ house in Lyons, however. He was succeeded by A
C. Dann in 1875, and during the same year J. A. Van Fleet was appointed, and
removed the office to his house in Rock Lake. He was properly the first post-
master in the town. The office was discontinued in 1881, Balaton having
sprung up with the building of theé 1). C. railroad through the town, and the

postoffice at that town supplying the territory heretofore supplied by the
Rock Lake P. O.

There are four school districts in the town and two substantial school build-
ings, one on section 8 and one on section 23 at Balaton.

Religious services are held in both these houses by the Presbyterians and
Methodists.

There are sixty voters and aliout 250 inhabitants in the town.

The assossor’s report for 1883 gives Rock l.ake 1,596 acres under cultivation,
of which 801 were wheat, 494 oats, 181 corn, 102 barley, 18 pota.toes There
were also 39 acres of cultivated forest trees. |

The last assessed valuation of the town was $64,391.  As real estate has nof
been assessed for two years, there will probably be a large increase in the next
assessment.

The surtace of Rock Lake is rolling prairie, contaming the usnal amount of
rich meadows and fertile farming land.

The Dakota Central railroad, a branch of the C. & N. W. which runs
from Tracy to Pierre on the Missouri river, passes through Rock Lake from
east to west, giving the town one station in Balaton. The Duluth road when
completed will undoubtedly give the town a competing market in a station
near hy on the west.

The Cottonwood river takes its rise in or near this town, and flows across it
giving drainage, water supply and rich meadows. |

The pupulation cf Rock Lake is mostly one of intelligent, thrifty and pros-
perous Americans. No town in the county can claim a better class of settlers.

There are three lakes in the town, Rock Lake and Yankton, before mention-
ed, and McKay lake on sections 3 ard 4.

"The houses of settlers are found as follows:

Section 2, nw T. Lochman; sw J. Golts.

Section 3, ne T. Luedkee; sw G. Golts.
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Section 4, nw M. S. Fawcett and J. A. Van Fleet.
Section 6, se Mrs. Crouch; sw Geo. Carlaw; nw O. E. Persons.
Section 8, sw J. Abernethy; se G. W, Linderman.
Section 11, J. O’Garee; se G. W. Rowe.
Section 12, nw Geo. W. Root; sw M. Randall; ne;O. S. Carlisle.
Section 13, n} J. W Wolverton. |
Section 14, ne A. McNabb; nw C. A. Glotfelter.
Section 18, ne E. R. Weeks; nw R. W, Taylor; sw S. Flint.
Section 20, ne T. L. Terry.
Section '21, se O. E. Merriman.
Section 22, sw L. Town; ne Mrs. McErlain; se A, Town.
" Section 28, village of Balaton.
Section 24, nw N. Truedson and E. W. Gifford; sw Mrs. Trotter; se Wm.
Hamm.
Section 26, ne J. H. Moore; se H. L. Giford; sw A. W. Bean.
Section 28, ne C. Town; se H. C. Howard; nw N. Terry.
Section 30, nw P. Russell; se T. Skoag.
Section 82, nw J, M. Johnson; sw C. K. Bengston.
Section 34, sw O. O. Laff; ne E. M. Hamm; se J. P. Davis.



TOWN OF SHELBURNLE.

The town of Shelburne is situated in the southwest corner of the county. It
was first settled in 1871 by E. K. Ronming, C. P. Myran and Christopher John-
son, Norwegians. The town was organized Sept. 6th 1879. The first town of-
ficers were P. C. McCann, charman; D. A. Aurandt and W. F. Randall, super-
visors, W. N. Olin, town clerk; k. W. Howard assessor; E. Peterson, treasur-
er; E. F. Dickson and H. P. Sandeen, justices; Charles Howard and Andrew
Gilbertson, constables.
~ The first religious services were held in the fall of 1876 by Rev. Mr. Egla.nd
a Norwegian Lutheran. That society built a frame church on section 20 in
the fall of 1880. The society sold the first church building to school district
No. 58, since which they have built a large and very commodious church,
which is an ornament to the town. The first school district was organized in
1880, including the whole town. The first school was taught by Miss Sadie
Bartlett in 1881. The town has now three school distriets.

Shelburne has one railroad running through it, the Dakota Central. A sta-
tion has been established about 60 rods west ot the Redwood river, called Red-
wood. :

The surface is rolling prairie, splendid soil, as good as can be tound in the
state, and is well adapted tor dairying or stock raising. Hay is plenty and
can be put in the stack to cost not exceeding one dollar per ton.  The town is
watered by the Redwood River and numerous small lakes. By digging . from
15 to 25 feet good water can be ovtained. |
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The western part of the town is settled by Norwegians, a very industrious
classs of people who are acquiring fine homes. The eastern part is settled
mostly by people from the New England states.

With the completion of the Duluth R. R. Shelburne is quite likely to get a
station near its east line, which will give it the best of market tacilities,

The Redwoad river flows through the town from south to north near the
center of the town.

Shelburne is a new town and rather scantily populated. The last vote of the
town, that on the question ot aiding the Duluth railroad. was 23, of which 20
were for the bonds. This should give the town a probable population ot about
130.. | |

The last assessed valuation of Shelburne was $27,791.

The assessor’s report for 1873 gave the town 1241 acres of improved land,
of which 540 were wheat, 313 oats, 89 corn, 255 barley, 20 potatoes, 18 ﬂax

The residents of the town are found as follows:

Section 2, s} Allen Spink and Jobn Olson.

Section 4, se C. Dean; sw W. F. Randall.

Section 6, ne P. Simenson; nw O. Kelson; sw A. G.Hangerud.

Section 14, ne W. H, Shafer; nw W. N. Olin; sw John Murphy.

Section 18, se E. K. Ronning; sp J. P. Myran.

Section 20, nw H, P. Sandeen; sw C. Peterson; ne Peter Anderson; se C*
Johnson: '

Section 22, nw P. C. McCann; sw P. McDonnell; e Ralph Hatton.

Section 24, sw E. F. Dickson; se C. Fellows.

Section 26, ne E. Peterson; se N. Hommoberg; sw S. Goseth; nw D. N.
Aurandt.

Section 30, el H. Jorgerson; sw E. A. Blegen; nw M. L. Blegen.

Section 32, sw P. Ronning; se 1. L. Blegen.

Seation 34, ne P. McGinnis; se N. Lilaquist; sw J. Limblum.



TOWN OF MONROE.

Monroe is the southeast town of the county and s town 109, range 4.

The surface of the town is level prairie with nothing to obstruct the vision.
There is scarcely any waste land, and the soil is of the best quality. In the
assessor’s report for 1883 the town is given 3,410 acres under cultivation, of
which 1,105 were wheat, 946 oats, 785 corn, 310 barley, 45 potatoes, 218 flax.

" In 1871 the first scttlements were made by David ‘at.ﬁmd E. W. Ifealy, and
George White. 1In 1872 J. L. Craig, Ole Lialson, L. L. Slar r, Edward Glynn
and perhaps & few others cawme into the town. The town did not imaprove
very rapidly for two or three years though tie W. & x5t PU R R, was built
through the town n 1872 and located a station nsar the east line, ¢niled She-
tek Station, lake Shete? ying a few mniles south in Murray Co. :L:“l the ship-
ping of that settiement Lc ng then mads here.  The postofiice of Sictek Sta-
tion was first in the township of Summit in Redwood Co. The station for a
time appeared on the maps as Sammit. Yhe station was moved to section 23
in 1874, and that and the postolflive changed in numne to Tracy in Febroary
1877. '

The first school in the town was-taught Ly Stella Cleveland in the s tunmmer
of 1875 in the Presbyterian church at Tracy.  This church had been built that
spring by ascciety organized Ly Rev. Ransom Waite who became paztor.
The first religious organization in the town wasa Congregational Sabbath
school in 1874. Before the builkling of the Presbyterian church those of that
persuasion had held services at the housé of L. L. Starr, as far back as 1873
under direction of Rav. Waite. .
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By an cnactment of the towrn early in its history all the sectiun lines are Liid
out for roads.

There are now two school buildings in the town outside of Tracy.

The first birth in town was a son of George White, June 17, 1872. He died
Sept. 10, 1872, the tirst death '

The town.was organized in Jaun. 1873, the first election being at the store of
H. N. Joy. '

There are three lakes in the town, two of them being so near together, on
section 19 and 30 that the name of Twin Lakes covers hoth. On section 31 is
lake Sigel, which by pipes supplies the railroad water tank in Tracy. There
is no natural timber in the town.]

Tracy will be treated of in another article.

Resident’s houses in Monroe are located as follows.

Section 1, sw C. Reggle.

Section 2, sw E. Ladd.

Section 5, se J. Jones.

Section 4, ne Jessup & Walsh; sw C. W. VanDusen; nw W. Northrup.

Section 5, ne Jas. Thompson; sw J. W. Tyson.

Section 6, se P. Peregerine; sw B. R. Bass; nw E. W. Glynn and I. Grover.

Section 8, nw J. Glynn; sw F. Durst; ne J. P. Dayis; se Rees Davis. .

Section 10,nw R. Lawrence and M Larson; sw G. Larson: ne E. Jo ones; se
T. Larson.

Section 11, se Nevius Bros,

Section 12, ne J. R Mullen; sed. B. Mullen.

Section 14 ned. B. Deal; se J. L. Craig; nw J. C.-Tweet; swR. Cavanagh.

Section lo, sw N. H. Starr. S

Section 17, se G. Mendiking.

Section 18, se W. Moulton; sw H. Hughos; nw R. Price.

Section 20, nw W. H. Morgan; sw O. Amundsou se O. Olsen.

Seetion 21, Chas. C. Warren.

Section 22, n°v A, Ellinson; sw L. Rialson; ne S. D. Peterson and T. Lewis.
se Ole Rialson.

Section 23, village of Tracy.

- Section 24, nw . S. Moses; sw W. Henning; ne J. Moline; se J. S. Wil-
marth. - ,

Section 25, nw H. H. Tivus.

Section 26, ne i.. Montgomery; nw Q. Johnson.

Section 27, J. J. Randall.

\Lctlon 28, ne C. Caristianson; se Ole Anderson; nw Ole Helgerson: sw A
Christianson.

Section 29, no Mrs. R. Sessions.

Section 30, nw E. D. Evans; sw G. Q. Miller.

Section 82, nw A. Amundson; sw H. Amundson; se J. Jacobson.

Section 34, nw H. Moline; sw E. Anderson.

Section 36, ne J. Retz; nw Schmitz.
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Choice Groceries Cheap.
E It you want the best goods that the market affords call on us.

'CROCKERY, GLASSWARE, STONEWARE.

‘We make a specialty of handling nothing but first-class goods that we can
guarantee.

MARBALL MARBLE WORKS,

A S\

. .J.  EEARRISON,

DEALER IN
Monuments and Head Stones, Table Tops, Shelves and
MARBLE POSTS.
Foreign and American granite furnished on application.



BEST PLACE TO TRADE IN MARSHALL !

Attractions in all lines.

Doy oo, Cooueres, Cotbing, Hae & Cage

(loves, Boals & Shoes, Hosiery, &e.

Carpets and Upholstering Gooas.

A mammoth stock of everything needed by farmers and
townspeople, filling fivst and second floors.

Don’t get your supplies till you have visited the store of

O, PEHRSON,

MARSHALL, MINN,




WHY ?

- Why do you throw away your old
LR ‘2 Sewing Machines, or exchange them
™\ for new ones [which is little better than
& - throwing them away,] when they are

P4 fiﬂ; g * 2 W simply out of order, and not worn,_out ?

I ha-ve repalred many machines in the last 12 years, and
have never been able to find one worn out. There are no
worn out sewing machines. Getthe worst old sewing ma-
chine you can find, bring it to me, and if the necessary parts
are in market, I will put it in order or forfeit $20. I have
never failed to successfully repair one yet.

Permanent residence, Marshall, Minn. Leave orders at
McGandy’s art gallery. ARTHUR M. NICHOLS.

Jarstall Nesseneer,

BESTABILISTIINID IN 187S3.

Subscription, price, $1,80 a year,

C: F. CASE, Editor and Proprietor.



1873—-ESTABLISHED-1873,

J. P. WATSON,

—DEALER IN—

Hardwaze, Stove, Tiawace, B lon, Wag Sk,

FENCE-WIRE,
Window Glass Paints, 0ils, Guns, Amu nition,

SILILVERW . ARE,

F ARM IMPLEN NTS.

Main St., Marshall Minn.

J. P. WATSON. | A. R. CHACE.

~ WATSON & CHACE,

—DEALERS IN—

FARM MACHINERY,

SULKY PLOWS, WALKING PLOWS, DRAGS, SEEDERS,

WAGONY, FEED MILLS, TWINE BINDERS, IRON MOWERS,

HARVESTERS,
Rea.pers Sulky Rakes, Horse Corn Planters.

i

Above is a partial list of Machine ydlmplmts arried in stock, all first
class and warranied.
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FARMING LANDS FOR SALI

—THE—

WINUNA & ST, P

HAS FOR SALLE

=
t ¥
L

R R

800,000 ACRES OF CHOICE LAND.

IN

SOUTHWESTERN MINNESOTA AND DAKOTA.

- Offered on the most liberal terms.

Small payment down and low rate of
interest.

124 per cent. discount for cash.

H. M. BURCHARD, CHAS. E. SIMMONS,
Land Agent, Gen. Land Commissioaner,
Marshall, Minn. Chicago, 111,



Blue Front Store !

FROM 1878 TO 1884.

And here we are now, and the true blue shall continue to
indicate that here is the place to secure the best quali-
ty of flour for the least money, as was the case in 1878
when wheat was 44 cents a bushel and common
grade flour $3.50 per cwt. Our friends will
remember when we brought the

UMl Refiahle Riverside

to the front, with true blue for our guiding motto, and we
stand there yet, determined 1(;10 never go back on our
: record.

‘We still have the old reliable Riverside flour, and also for
the least money,

o N & 2% &
)
# 1 / i )
¥ ,
d
W

MEN’S FURNISHING GOODS, GLOVES, AND
MITTENS, TRUNKS & VALISES.

When you want anything, call and see us, and we promise
full measure, 16 ounces to the pound, and no stretching.

F. S. WETHERBEE.



Ee. I WE. Addisomn

DEALER IN

HARDWARE

AND

FARM MACHINERY !

BUILDING PAPER,

PREPAR]

gD PAINTS AND ALABASTINE,

A LARGE STOCK.OF

Hoating and Coolk Stoves,

Grasoline Stoves,
Barbed Wire, DPiles of Tinware, &c,

I have two first-class workmen, and am prepared to manu-
facture any thing that can be made from tin, sheet
iron or copper.

Especial attention is called to the Deering Binderand Case
Threshing Machine, the best machines now in use.



Deehive More.

The largest stock west

g of Mankato. The bus-

“iest place in town.

LRGERXKERY,

A mammoth stock,

AT LOW PRICES.%

’5"'{— | B

Stoneware, Green, Dried and Tropical Fruit, Honey,

Marshall IMInn.,

.«



BOOTS & SHOES!

The largest exclusive boot and shoe house in scuthwestern
Minnesota is that of

isorais Famda,
Marshall.

If you want the best goods in the mar-
ket, ie can supply you. Several years
experlence enables him to always
give satisfaction, and farnish bet-
ter goods for 'the money than
you can get elsewhere.

in endless variety, from the finest to the cheapest.

Everythirg needed in the boot and shou line you can find at Janda's store,
: sian of the red bout.



WINONA GANG-SAWED

RESERATE AEE IR 4L : .
Y G . y Vo .

YOUMANS BROTHERS & HODGINS.

We offer larger and better selected stocks of common lumber
dimension, flooring, siding, etc. ever offered in market -

ALSO

WAINSCOTTING, SHINGLES, LATH, DOORS

GLAZED SASH and BUILDING PAPER,

BLINDS AND DOOR AND WINDOW FRAMES OF ALL KINDS

SCREEN DOORS AND CEDAR POSTS &
BRICK, LIME, PLASTERNG-HAIR

Office at end of bridge on Second street, Marshall, Lyon Co. Minn

M. SULLIVAN, Agent.



PARSONS & WISE,
CLOTHING,

\ v “I
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.
We always keep a large as-
sortment of men’s and boys’

suits, trunks and valises, hats

and caps of every style, gloves

and hosiery, underwear, &c,

Our goods are selected by a

N

thofoughly competent cloth-
\ \\ % ‘ing man and our prices cannot
) / .
te the west for the
'/ \o\\‘\\é é be beaten in |
1// /’i\? e, q same quality of goods.
\'/ Wi
0 “l‘ > .' Our clothing is kept in such
‘nl ..

N;/@ ,,
quantities that we can fit ev-

=

‘ll. &l‘
erybody, and is alwa,ys Warranted to be just what we sell it

for.

One Price to All,






